
Next Ord: 1682-10
Next Res: 836-10

VISION STATEMENT

SEDRO-WOOLLEY IS A FRIENDLY CITY THAT IS CHARACTERIZED BY CITY 60VERNMENT AND CITIZENS WORKIN6 TOGETHER TO

ACHIEVE A PROSPEROUS, VIBRANT AND SAFE COMMUNITY

MISSION STATEMENT

TO PROVIDE SERVICES AND OPPORTUNITIES WHICH CREATE A COMMUNITY WHERE PEOPLE CHOOSE TO
LIVE, WORK AND PLAY

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA
September 22, 2010

7:00 PM
Sedro-Woolley Municipal Building

Council Chambers
325 Metcalf Street

1. Call to Order
2. Pledge of Allegiance
3. Consent Calendar

NOTE: Agenda items on the Consent Calendar are considered routine in nature and may be adopted by the council by a single motion,
unless any Councilmember wishes an item to be removed. The Council on the regular agenda will consider any item so removed after the Consent
Calendar.

a. Minutes from Previous Meeting
b. Finance

- Claim Checks #70241  to #70348 in the amount of $194,585.06. 
(Voided Checks #70306 - #70309) 

- Payroll Checks #48725 to #48830 in the amount of $173,406.75.
c. Possible Contract Amendment 1 - Contract 2010-PS-09 Construction Administration and

Inspection Services for the SR9 Sanitary Sewer Inspection Project - Reichhardt & Ebe
Engineering

d. Proclamation - United Way Campaign 2010
4. Parks Board - Introduction of Members
5. Public Comment (Limited to 3-5 minutes)
PUBLIC HEARING 
6. Ordinance - Alternate payment schedule for impact fees and general facility charges for single-family

houses constructed for resale (spec homes) (2"ci reading)
7. Land use permit & application economic hardship extensions (I S` reading)
NEW BUSINESS 
8. Ordinance - Amendments to Chapter 17.48 SWMC and the Design Standards and Guidelines for

recreation areas (Private Parks) within subdivisions (action requested)
COMMITTEE REPORTS AND REPORTS FROM OFFICERS 
9. Fire Station 2 Update

There may be an Executive Session immediately preceding or, following the meeting.



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA
REGULAR MEETING 

SEP 2 2 2010

7:00 PM. COUNCIL CHAMBERS
AGENDA NO 

    

DATE: September 22, 2010

TO: Mayor Anderson and City Council

FROM: Patsy Nelson, Finance Director

SUBJECT: 1) CALL TO ORDER; 2) PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE; 3) CONSENT
CALENDAR

1. CALL TO ORDER - The Mayor will call the September 22, 2010
Regular Meeting to Order. The Finance Director will note
those in attendance and those absent.

Ward 1

Ward 2

Ward 3

Ward 4

Ward 5

Ward 6

Councilmember Ted Meamber

Councilmember Tony Splane

Councilmember Thomas Storrs

Councilmember Pat Colgan

Councilmember Hugh Galbraith

Councilmember Rick Lemley

At-Large Councilmember Brett SandstrOm

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - The Mayor will lead the City Council
and citizens in the Pledge of Allegiance to the United States
of America.

3. CONSENT CALENDAR - Mayor will ask for Council approval of
Consent Calendar items.



 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA
REGULAR MEETING

SEP 2 2 2010
7:00 P.M. COUNC&CHAMBERS
AGENDA NO.CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY

Regular Meeting of the City Council
September 8, 2010 — 7:00 P.M. — City Hall Council Chambers

ROLL CALL: Present: Mayor Mike Anderson, Councilmembers: Ted Meamber, Tony
Splane, Tom Storrs, Pat Colgan, Hugh Galbraith, Rick Lemley (Late) and Brett
SandstrOm. Staff: Recorder Brue, Finance Director Nelson, City Supervisor/Attorney
Berg, Planner Moore, Asst. Fire Chief Olson and Police Chief Wood.

The Meeting was called to order at 7:00 P.M.

Pledge of Allegiance

Mayor Anderson announced that Item G has been pulled from the Consent calendar as it
is not complete.

Consent Calendar
O Minutes from Previous Meeting
o Finance

o Claim Checks #70129 to #70240 in the amount of $639,466.09
(Voided Checks #70206 thru #70211)

o Payroll Checks #48615 to #48724 in the amount of $237,152.98
o Request for Out of State Travel — Library (2)
O Resolution #834-10 Appointing Members to the Lodging Tax Advisory

Committee
o Resolution #835-10 Declaring Certain Property as Surplus and Authorizing its

Disposition
O Possible Contract Amendment 01 — Contract 2010-PS-08 — Bright Rain

Solutions
O Interlocal Agreement with Town of Concrete for Shared Use of a Fire Truck

(removed from consent calendar)
• Personnel Policies
• Proclamation — September 17 th through 23 rd as Constitution Week

Councilmember Storrs moved to approve the consent calendar A through I, with the
exception of Item G. Seconded by Councilmember Colgan.

Councilmember Meamber questioned the Hotel/Motel tax use.

Motion carried (6-0).

Coluncilmember Lemley arrived at 7:03 P.M.



Public Comment

No public comment received.

NEW BUSINESS

Ordinance — Garden of Eden/Westerman Road Annexation

Planner Moore presented background information regarding the Garden of
Eden/Westerman Road Annexation. He noted Council has previously discussed the
annexation at previous Council meetings and worksessions and the applicants have
completed all their requirements. Staff recommendation is to approve the Ordinance to
annex.

Councilmember Meamber moved to adopt Ordinance 1681-10 to annex approximately
22.06 acres west of Garden of Eden, north of Jones and east of Westerman Roads.
Councilmember Splane seconded.

Council discussion ensued regarding support for annexation by property owners,
annexation requests driven by land owners and R-5 Zoning lot size.

Motion carried (7-0).

Ordinance — Alternate Payment Schedule of Impact Fees and General Facility Charges
for Single-Family Houses Constructed for Resale (Spec Homes) 

Planner Moore reviewed a proposal for an alternate payment schedule of impact fees
which would allow a temporary deferral for payment for homes being build as "spec
homes". He noted at the present time impact fees are paid at time of building permit.
Skagit County/Island Builders Association (SCIBA) supports the consideration in order
to help builders during the tough economic times. Moore noted that safeguards have
been built into the proposed ordinance which include no occupancy until fees are paid,
payment of fees upon sale with a 12 month time limit for deferral of payment. The
proposed ordinance is for Council consideration as this is a first read. Action will take
place at the next meeting.

Discussion included individuals having a home built for their occupancy, helps with loan
to value ratio and tracking to make sure no occupancy occurs.

COMMITTEE REPORTS AND REPORTS FROM OFFICERS

Fire Station 2 Update 

City Supervisor/Attorney Berg updated Council on the progress of Fire Station 2 noting
the project is still on schedule. He stated that Congressman Rick Larson toured the site
last week, as well as the FEMA representative was on site for his inspection. Berg



reviewed the change order proposal log which includes changes or additions of electrical
switches, key pad door openers, central exhaust design conflicts and a steel casing for
water line. He stated the project is going smoothly with good quality control.

Asst. Chief Olson — announced the upcoming Frisbee Golf scheduled for Thursday at
6:00 P.M. as part of the City's Wellness program. The event will be held at the Northern
State grounds. He also announced the upcoming 9/11 Spaghetti Feed to be held at the
Sedro-Woolley Eagles with proceeds to benefit the Fire Dept. Olson noted the ladder
truck almost ready to be put into service.

Police Chief Wood — reported on the progress of the dog kennel with work being
completed by himself and participants in the OWP.

Councilmember Storrs — questioned the City policy on per diem for staff travel.

City Supervisor/Attorney Berg noted it varies based on bargaining agreements and
departmental budgets.

Councilmember Colgan — questioned the status of the Metcalf street lighting.

City Supervisor/Attorney Berg noted there is currently no funding in the budget for
lighting improvements and the City was not successful in obtaining grant funding.
Discussion ensued regarding trying to obtain a grant for a water park.

Councilmember Galbraith — addressed a problem with the barricades at Janicki Cove.

Councilmember Lemley — announced the upcoming Founders Day events this coming
weekend which includes the bank robbery reenactment, museum open house and car
show.

Councilmember Sandstrom — questioned the status of the Chamber Economic
Development seminar and plans for Pomegranate design element for the Skateboard Park.

City Supervisor/Attorney Berg noted that was not a City sponsored project and he should
check with the Chamber.

Councilmember Splane moved to adjourn. Seconded by All. Motion carried (7-0).

The meeting adjourned at 7:34 P.M.



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA
REGULAR MEETING

SEP 2 2 2010

7:00 P.M. COUNCILSIAANIBERS
AGENDA NO. 

DATE: September 22, 2010

TO: Mayor Anderson and City Council

FROM: Patsy Nelson, Finance Director

SUBJECT: FINANCE - CLAIMS

Attached you will find the Claim Checks register proposed for
payment for the period ending September 22, 2010.

Motion to approve Claim Checks #70241 to #70348 in the amount of
$194,585.06. (Voided Checks #70306 - #70309)

Motion to approve Payroll Checks #48725 to #48830 in the amount of
$173,406.75. 

If you have any comments, questions or concerns, please contact me
for information during the working day at 855-1661.  This will
allow me to look up the invoices that are stored in our office.



CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY

SORTED TRANSACTION WARRANT REGISTER

09/22/2010 (Printed 09/17/2010 08:56) PAGE 1

WARRANT VENDOR NAME DESCRIPTION AMOUNT

70241 SKAGIT COUNTY AUDITOR MISC-FILING FEES/LIEN EXP SWR 1,178.00

MISC-FILING FEES/LIEN EXP SAN 1,242.00

WARRANT TOTAL 2,420.00

70242 AIR & SPACE MAGAZINE BOOKS, PERIOD, RECORDS LIB 44.00

WARRANT TOTAL 44.00

70243 ALL-PHASE ELECTRIC REPAIR/MT-HARRY OSBORNE PR 145.91

REPAIR/MAINTENANCE-LAND CEM 152.17

WARRANT TOTAL 298.08

70244 ALPINE FIRE & SAFETY SUPPLIES LIB 24.77

WARRANT TOTAL 24.77

70245 ARAMARK UNIFORM SERVICES MISC-LAUNDRY CEM 16.07

MISC-LAUNDRY CEM 25.20

MISC-LAUNDRY ST 19.19

MISC-DUES/SUBSCRIPTIONS SWR 32.75

WARRANT TOTAL 93.21

70246 ASSOCIATION OF WA CITIES RETIRED MEDICAL PD 7,988.23

WARRANT TOTAL 7,988.23

70247 ASSOC PETROLEUM PRODUCTS AUTO FUEL CS 80.76

AUTO FUEL PD 1,243.31

AUTO FUEL/DIESEL FD 620.47

AUTO FUEL/DIESEL PK 315.59

AUTO FUEL/DIESEL CEM 137.34

AUTO FUEL/DIESEL ST 98.80

AUTO FUEL/DIESEL ST 146.79

AUTO FUEL/DIESEL ST 73.99

AUTO FUEL/DIESEL SWR 71.67

AUTO FUEL/DIESEL SWR 157.03

AUTO FUEL/DIESEL SAN 1,218.50

AUTO FUEL/DIESEL SAN 127.03

WARRANT TOTAL 4,293.28

70248 BANK OF AMERICA EMPLOYEE WELLNESS EXE 120.00

SMALL TOOLS & MINOR EQUIP SAN 1,525.62

SMALL TOOLS & MINOR EQUIP SAN 40.68

WARRANT TOTAL 1,686.30

70249 BANK OF AMERICA CONSTRUCTION- METCALF LINE PWT 23.52

WARRANT TOTAL 23.52

70250 BARNETT IMPLEMENT CO. INC REPAIR/MT-SMALL TOOLS EQUIP PK 405.75

WARRANT TOTAL 405.75

70251 BANK OF AMERICA SUPPLIES LIB 32.83

SUPPLIES LIB 201.13

SUPPLIES LIB 25.95

BOOKS, PERIOD, RECORDS LIB 274.40



2

WARRANT

CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY

SORTED TRANSACTION WARRANT REGISTER

09/22/2010 (Printed 09/17/2010 08:56)

VENDOR NAME DESCRIPTION

PAGE

AMOUNT

WARRANT TOTAL 534.31

70252 BANK OF AMERICA UNIFORMS FD 30.29

FIRE TRUCK FD 17.19

WARRANT TOTAL 47.48

70253 BANK OF AMERICA REPAIR-MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES IT 24.21

REPAIR-MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES IT 603.63

SMALL TOOLS/MINOR EQUIP IT 53.96

NETWORK HARDWARE IT 216.38

WARRANT TOTAL 898.18

70254 BAY CITY SUPPLY OPERATING SUP - CITY HALL PK 138.49

OPERATING SUPPLIES SWR 263.74

WARRANT TOTAL 402.23

70255 BIO-ENVIRONMENTAL SOLUTIONS MAINTENANCE OF LINES SWR 1,866.45

WARRANT TOTAL 1,866.45

70256 BLUMENTHAL UNIFORM & EQUP UNIFORMS/ACCESSORIES PD 86.94

WARRANT TOTAL 86.94

70257 BOUWENS, JENNIFER A. PROF SVC-PROSECUTING ATTY LGL 2,500.00

WARRANT TOTAL 2,500.00

70258 BRIGHT RAIN SOLUTIONS PROFESSIONAL SERVICES SWR 1,080.00

WARRANT TOTAL 1,080.00

70259 BROWN & COLE STORES EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION EXE 31.08

WARRANT TOTAL 31.08

70260 CARLETTI ARCHITECTS P.S. CONSTRUCTION F-C 7,071.86

WARRANT TOTAL 7,071.86

70261 CASCADE NATURAL GAS CORP. PUBLIC UTILTIES PD 10.60

UTILITIES-COMMUNITY CTR PK 12.80

UTILITIES-SENIOR CENTER PK 35.94

UTILITIES-HAMMER SQUARE PK 13.91

UTILITIES - SHOP PK 15.90

UTILITIES - SHOP PK 16.11

PUBLIC UTILITIES-CITY HALL PR 128.09

PUBLIC UTILITIES ST 10.60

PUBLIC UTILITIES ST 6.82

PUBLIC UTILITIES LIB 10.60

PUBLIC UTILITIES SWR 57.14

PUBLIC UTILITIES SAN 23.82

WARRANT TOTAL 342.33

70262 CENTRAL WELDING SUPPLY OPERATING SUPPLIES SAN 17.96

WARRANT TOTAL 17.96

70263 CITIES INSURANCE ASSOC. MISC-JUDGMENT & DAMAGES ST 1,000.00



CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY

SORTED TRANSACTION WARRANT REGISTER

09/22/2010 (Printed 09/17/2010 08,56) PAGE 3

WARRANT VENDOR NAME DESCRIPTION

WARRANT TOTAL

AMOUNT

1,000.00

70264 CODE PUBLISHING INC. CODE BOOK LGS 234.88

WARRANT TOTAL 234.88

70265 COLLINS OFFICE SUPPLY,INC OFFICE/OPERATING SUPPLIES PD 111.21

WARRANT TOTAL 111.21

70266 COUNTRYSIDE CHEVROLET REPAIR & MAINT - AUTO PD 306.38

REPAIR & MAINT - AUTO PD 202.20

REPAIR & MAINT - AUTO PD 43.01

REPAIR & MAINT - AUTO PD 43.01

WARRANT TOTAL 594.60

70267 CRYSTAL SPRINGS SUPPLIES/BOOKS PLN 10.04

SUPPLIES ENG 10.03

OPERATING SUPPLIES FD 27.96

OFF/OPER SUPPS & BOOKS INSP 10.04

OPERATING SUP - PARKS SHOP PK 19,31

OPERATING SUPPLIES CEM 10.67

OPERATING SUPPLIES ST 54.22

OPERATING SUPPLIES SWR 63.43

WARRANT TOTAL 205.70

70268 CUES MAINTENANCE OF LINES SWR 377.24

WARRANT TOTAL 377.24

70269 DC'S PRINTING & AWARDS OPERATING SUPPLIES SWR 10.82

WARRANT TOTAL 10.82

70270 DATA BASE RECORDS DESTRUCTION LLC PROFESSIONAL SERVICES JUD 38.21

SUPPLIES FIN 19.11

OFFICE/OPERATING SUPPLIES PD 43.95

WARRANT TOTAL 101.27

70271 DAY WIRELESS SYSTEMS INC MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT PD 3,035.02

MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT PD 764.87

WARRANT TOTAL 3,799.89

70272 DIMENSIONAL COMM, INC. PROFESSIONAL SERVICES IT 127.14

WARRANT TOTAL 127.14

70273 E & E LUMBER MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT PD 336.85

MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT PD 63.84

MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT PD 402.61

MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT PD 145.16

MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT PD 215.29

REPAIR/MT-MEMORIAL PARK PK 14.01

REPAIR/MT-MEMORIAL PARK PK 12.51

REPAIR/MAINTENANCE-EQUIP ST 23.60

OPERATING SUPPLIES SWR 5.16

OPERATING SUPPLIES SWR 14.33

-



4

WARRANT

CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY

SORTED TRANSACTION WARRANT REGISTER

09/22/2010 (Printed 09/17/2010 08:56)

VENDOR NAME DESCRIPTION

PAGE

AMOUNT

OPERATING SUPPLIES SWR 6.69

OPERATING SUPPLIES SAN 323.52

WARRANT TOTAL 1,273.25

70274 ENTERPRISE OFFICE SYSTEMS SUPPLIES FIN 37.63

WARRANT TOTAL 37.63

70275 E.S.R.I INC. MISC-DUES/SUBSCRIP/MEMSHIP PLN 378.70

DUES/SUBSCRIPTIONS ENG 757.40

MISC-DUES/SUBSCRIPTIONS SWR 378.70

WARRANT TOTAL 1,514.80

70276 FEI 43007 REPAIR/MAINT-GARAGE PD 112.77

REPAIR/MT-MEMORIAL PARK PK 286.33

WARRANT TOTAL 399.10

70277 FRONTIER TELEPHONE JUD 69.24

TELEPHONE EXE 103.86

TELEPHONE FIN 103.86

TELEPHONE LGL 46.16

TELEPHONE IT 34.62

TELEPHONE PLN 34.62

TELEPHONE ENG 80.78

TELEPHONE PD 345.78

TELEPHONE FD 126.94

TELEPHONE INSP 34.62

TELEPHONE PK 23.08

TELEPHONE ST 11.54

TELEPHONE LIB 57.70

TELEPHONE SWR 92.32

TELEPHONE SWR 254.46

TELEPHONE SAN 46.16

WARRANT TOTAL 1,465.74

70278 FRONTIER BUILDING SUPPLY MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT PD 166.63

WARRANT TOTAL 166.63

70279 GEOTEST SERVICES, INC. ' CONSTRUCTION F-C 913.00

WARRANT TOTAL 913.00

70280 GENERAL FIRE APPARATUS FIRE TRUCK FD 363.94

FIRE TRUCK FD 1,233.48

WARRANT TOTAL 1,597.42

70281 GUARDIAN SECURITY OPERATING SUP - LIBRARY PK 210.00

WARRANT TOTAL 210.00

70282 HEDEEN & CADITZ, PLLC CONSTRUCTION- METCALF LINE PWT 44,615.66

WARRANT TOTAL 44,615.66

70283 HOLLAND HEALTH SERV. INC. RETIRED MEDICAL PD 314.00

WARRANT TOTAL 314.00



CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY

5

SORTED TRANSACTION WARRANT REGISTER

09/22/2010 (Printed 09/17/2010 08:56) PAGE

WARRANT VENDOR NAME DESCRIPTION AMOUNT

70284 HONEY BUCKET UTILITIES-PORTABLE TOILETS PK 64.50

UTILITIES-PORTABLE TOILETS PK 64.50

WARRANT TOTAL 129.00

70285 INGRAM LIBRARY SERVICES BOOKS, PERIOD, RECORDS LIB 33.98

BOOKS, PERIOD, RECORDS LIB 91.83

BOOKS, PERIOD, RECORDS LIB 34.15

BOOKS, PERIOD, RECORDS LIB 2.70

WARRANT TOTAL 162.66

70286 INTERMOUNTAIN TRUCK OPERATING SUPPLIES SAN 85.41

WARRANT TOTAL 85.41

70287 KUM, THOMAS R PROFESSIONAL SERVICES JUD 250.00

WARRANT TOTAL 250.00

70288 KCDA PURCHASING COOPERATIVE OFFICE/OPERATING SUPPLIES PD 87.67

WARRANT TOTAL 87.67

70289 KESTI, KEVIN HEALTH CLUB PK 135.00

WARRANT TOTAL 135.00

70290 LANGUAGE EXCH. INC. (THE) LANGUAGE INTERPRETER JUD 116.00

WARRANT TOTAL 116.00

70291 LEONARD BOUDINOT & SKODJE CONST-FRUITDALE MCGARIGLE AST 302.50

WARRANT TOTAL 302.50

70292 LIBRARY STORE, INC., SUPPLIES LIB 119.17

WARRANT TOTAL 119.17

70293 LOGGERS AND CONTRACTORS FIRE TRUCK PD 105.37

WARRANT TOTAL 105.37

70294 LOWELL, DAVID D. PROFESSIONAL SERVICES JUD 150.00

ASSOCIATE'S FEES JUD 150.00

WARRANT TOTAL 300.00

70295 MCCANN, WILLIAM R. INDIGENT DEFEND CONTR JUD 2,557.50

WARRANT TOTAL 2,557.50

70296 MARTIN MARIETTA MATERIALS REPAIR/MAINT-STREETS ST 909.97

WARRANT TOTAL 909.97

70297 MOTOR TRUCKS, INC. REPAIRS/MAINT-EQUIP SAN 460.50

WARRANT TOTAL 460.50

70298 NORTH COAST ELECTRIC CO. MAINT OF GENERAL EQUIP SWR 42.66

WARRANT TOTAL 42.66

70299 OUTWEST UNLIMITED REPAIR/MAINTENANCE-LAND CEM 105.00

WARRANT TOTAL 105.00



CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY

SORTED TRANSACTION WARRANT REGISTER

09/22/2010 (Printed 09/17/2010 08:56) PAGE 6

WARRANT

70300

VENDOR NAME

PARKSON CORPORATION

DESCRIPTION

MAINT OF GENERAL EQUIP SWR

MAINT OF GENERAL EQUIP SWR

WARRANT TOTAL

AMOUNT

783.71

48.07

831.76

70301 PAT RIMMER TIRE CTR, INC OPERATING SUPPLIES SWR 25.97

REPAIR/MAINTENANCE SAN 259.66

WARRANT TOTAL 285.65

70302 PARTSMASTER SMALL TOOLS & MINOR EQUIP SWR 338.17

WARRANT TOTAL 338.17

70303 PETROCARD AUTO FUEL/DIESEL PK 53.64

AUTO FUEL/DIESEL CEM 97.98

AUTO FUEL/DIESEL ST 147.45

AUTO FUEL/DIESEL SWR 61.23

AUTO FUEL/DIESEL SAN 18.86

WARRANT TOTAL 379.16

70304 PETTY CASH-DEBRA PETERSON SUPPLIES LIB 52.08

EARLY LITERACY LIB 16.22

WARRANT TOTAL 68.30

70305 PITNEY BOWES, INC. SUPPLIES FIN 335.64

WARRANT TOTAL 335.64

70310 PLATS PLUS, INC. IMPROVEMENT-TOWNSHIP LINE SWR 2,276.63

WARRANT TOTAL 2,276.63

70311 PROTECH AUTOMOTIVE REPAIR/MAINTENANCE-EQUIP ST 153.29

WARRANT TOTAL 153.29

70312 PROFORCE LAW ENFORCEMENT MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT PD 269.36

WARRANT TOTAL 269.36

70313 PUBLIC UTILITY DIS. NO.1 PUBLIC UTILTIES PD 17.40

UTILITIES-RIVERFRONT PK 241.96

UTILITIES-COMMUNITY CTR PK 206.94

UTILITIES-SENIOR CENTER PK 233.48

UTILTIES-TRAIN PK 17.40

UTILITIES-HAMMER SQUARE PK 104.55

UTILITIES-BINGHAM & MEMORIAL P 35.09

UTILITIES - OTHER PK 32.07

PUBLIC UTILITIES-CITY HALL PR 533.39

PUBLIC UTILITIES CEM 77.80

PUBLIC UTILITIES ST 35.09

PUBLIC UTILITIES LIB 29.48

PUBLIC UTILITIES SWR 201.12

PUBLIC UTILITIES SAN 38.11

WARRANT TOTAL 1,803.88

70314 PUGET SOUND ENERGY PUBLIC UTILITIES ST 8,709.44

WARRANT TOTAL 8,709.44



CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY

SORTED TRANSACTION WARRANT REGISTER

09/22/2010 (Printed 09/17/2010 08:56) PAGE 7

WARRANT

70315

70316

VENDOR NAME

QUIRING MONUMENTS, INC.

REICHHARDT & EBE ENG, INC

DESCRIPTION

LINERS CEM

WARRANT TOTAL

ENG-SR20 WIDE METC:_LF-TOWN ART

AMOUNT

80.00

80.00

7,154.99

WARRANT TOTAL 7,154.99

70317 RELIABLE (OFFICE SUPPLY) OFFICE/OPERATING SUPPLIES PD 69.75

OFFICE/OPERATING SUPPLIES PD 69.75

WARRANT TOTAL 139.50

70318 SR20 MOTORSPORTS, LLC OPERATING SUPPLIES SAN 119.02

WARRANT TOTAL 119.02

70319 SCIENTIFIC SUPPLY OPERATING SUPPLIES SWR 107.69

OPERATING SUPPLIES SWR 45.39

WARRANT TOTAL 153.08

70320 SEDRO-WOOLLEY AUTO PARTS REPAIRS/MT-PARKS SHOP PK 3.14

OPERATING SUPPLIES CEM 7.02

OPERATING SUPPLIES CEM 16.18

REPAIR/MAINT-EQUIP & BLDG CEM 7.31

REPAIR/MAINTENANCE-EQUIP ST 4.33

OPERATING SUPPLIES SWR 60.59

WARRANT TOTAL 98.57

70321 SEDRO-WOOLLEY CHAMBER OF MISC-TUITION/REGISTRATION PLN 30.36

WARRANT TOTAL 30.36

70322 SK. CO. COM ACTION AGENCY SKAGIT COMM ACTION AGENCY HLT 84.16

WARRANT TOTAL 84.16

70323 SKAGIT CO. PUBLIC WORKS SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL SAN 43,194.72

WARRANT TOTAL 43,194.72

70324 SK..".GIT COUNTY SHERIFF PRISONERS PD 801.06

WARRANT TOTAL 801.06

70325 SKAGIT FARMERS SUPPLY OPERATING SUPPLIES-PROPANE ST 45.80

WARRANT TOTAL 45.80

70326 SK. VALLEY BARK & TOPSOIL, INC. MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT PD 31.22

WARRANT TOTAL 31.22

70327 SKAGIT VALLEY PUBLISHING LEGAL PUBLICATIONS LGS 22.50

ADVERTISING PLN 63.75

ADVERTISING PLN 52.50

WARRANT TOTAL 138.75

70328 SLAYDEN, JOHN OPERATING SUPPLIES SAN 30.00

WARRANT TOTAL 30.00

70329 SPARKLE SHOP LAUNDRIES UNIFORM CLEANING PD 17.31



CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY

SORTED TRANSACTION WARRANT REGISTER

09/22/2010 (Printed 09/17/2010 08:56) PAGE 8

WARRANT VENDOR NAME DESCRIPTION

WARRANT TOTAL

AMOUNT

17.31

70330 STILES & STILES MUNICIPAL COURT JUDGE JUD 2,728.00

WARRANT TOTAL 2,728.00

70331 TIGERDIRECT.COM MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT PD 1,594.06

WARRANT TOTAL 1,594.06

70332 TRAFFIC SAFETY SUPPLY CO. OPERATING SUPPLIES ST 1,195.38

WARRANT TOTAL 1,195.38

70333 TRUE VALUE OPERATING SUPPLIES FD 8.44

OPERATING SUPPLIES FD 8.44

OPERATING SUPPLIES FD 4.22

OPERATING SUPPLIES FD 13.51

REPAIRS/MT-COMMUNITY CTR PK 5.71

REPAIR/MT-SENIOR CENTER PK 76.57

REPAIR/MT-MEMORIAL PARK PK 72.02

REPAIR/MT-MEMORIAL PARK PK 5.94

REPAIR/MT-MEMORIAL PARK PR 12.39

REPAIR/MT-MEMORIAL PARK PK 8.10

REPAIR/MT-MEMORIAL PARK PK 64.90

REPAIR/MT-MEMORIAL PARK PK 7.88

REPAIR/MT-MEMORIAL PARK PK 13.06

REPAIR/MAINTENANCE-EQUIP ST 15.12

OPERATING SUPPLIES SWR 10.58

OPERATING SUPPLIES SWR 13.29

OPERATING SUPPLIES SAN 6.47

WARRANT TOTAL 329.76

70334 USF REDDAWAY, INC. OPERATING SUPPLIES SAN 315.00

WARRANT TOTAL 315.00

70335 USA BLUE BOOK OPERATING SUPPLIES SWR 23.12

SAFETY EQUIPMENT SWR 121.86

SAFETY EQUIPMENT SWR 41.81

SAFETY EQUIPMENT SWR 28.02

PORTABLE EQUIPMENT SWR 713.40

WARRANT TOTAL 872.17

70336 UTIL UNDERGROUND LOC CTR OPERATING SUPPLIES SWR 37.70

WARRANT TOTAL 37.70

70337 VALLEY AUTO SUPPLY OPERATING SUPPLIES SWR 5.40

REPAIRS/MAINT-EQUIP SAN 9.22

WARRANT TOTAL 14.62

70338 VISION FORMS, LLC POSTAGE SWR 1,224.82

POSTAGE SAN 584.14

OPERATING SUPPLIES SWTR 75.39

WARRANT TOTAL 1,884.35

-

-

http://TIGERDIRECT.COM


CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY

9

WARRANT

SORTED TRANSACTION WARRANT REGISTER

09/22/2010 (Printed 09/17/2010 08:56)

VENDOR NAME DESCRIPTION

PAGE

AMOUNT

70339 WA ST DEPT OF NATURAL RES TAXES AND ASSESSMENTS ST 17.40

WARRANT TOTAL 17.40

70340 WA ST DEPT OF PROF LICEN INTERGOV SVC-GUN PERMITS PD 75.00

WARRANT TOTAL 75.00

70341 WA STATE DEPT OF REVENUE PUBLIC EDUC. SUPPLIES PD 47.93

FIRE TRUCK FD 23.37

TAXES AND ASSESSMENTS PK 115.11

TAXES AND ASSESSMENTS CEM 182.82

REPAIR/MAINTENANCE-EQUIP ST 34.88

SUPPLIES LIB 12.83

TAXES AND ASSESSMENTS LIB 13.26

BOOKS, PERIOD, RECORDS LIB 12.71

OPERATING SUPPLIES SWR 26.69

SAFETY EQUIPMENT SWR 14.46

TAXES AND ASSESSMENTS SWR 5,234.90

TAXES & ASSESSMENTS SAN 5,070.52

WARRANT TOTAL 10,789.48

70342 WASHINGTON STATE PATROL INTERGOV SVC-GUN PERMITS PD 96.25

WARRANT TOTAL 96.25

70343 WSU URBAN IPM & PEST SAFE ED MISC-TUITION/REGISTRATION SWR 100.00

WARRANT TOTAL 100.00

70344 WAPATO POLICE DEPARTMENT PRISONERS PD 1,150.00

WARRANT TOTAL 1,150.00

70345 WASTE MANAGEMENT OF SKGT RECYCLING FEE - HOUSEHOLD SAN 8,157.09

WARRANT TOTAL 8,157.09

70346 WEST PAYMENT CTR WESTLAW SERVICES LGL 322.57

WARRANT TOTAL 322.57

70347 WOOD'S LOGGING SUPPLY INC MAINTENANCE OF LINES SWR 71.09

REPAIRS/MAINT-EQUIP SAN 93.41

WARRANT TOTAL 164.50

70348 GUNNARSON, MICHAEL H. B & 0 TAX-SEWER 1.06

B & 0 TAX-SANITATION .38

B & 0 TAX STORMWATER .08

SEWER SERVICE CHARGES 53.06

INTEREST ON PERSONAL ACCOUNTS .18

GARBAGE/SOLID WASTE FEES 16.72

GARBAGE/SOLID WASTE FEES 2.49

INTEREST ON PERSONAL ACCTS .08

SERVICE CHARGES 3.49

WARRANT TOTAL 77.54

RUN TOTAL 194,585.06



CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY

FUND

SORTED TRANSACTION WARRANT REGISTER

09/22/2010 (Printed 09/17/2010 08:56) PAGE

TITLE AMOUNT

001 CURRENT EXPENSE FUND 35,210.30

101 PARK FUND 3,901.07

102 CEMETERY FUND 915.56

103 STREET FUND 12,715.70

104 ARTERIAL STREET FUND 7,457.49

105 LIBRARY FUND 1,089.79

330 1996 FIRE STATION CONST FUND 7,984.86

332 PWTF SEWER CONSTRUCTION FUND 44,639.18

401 SEWER FUND 17,565.50

412 SOLID WASTE FUND 63,026.73

425 STORMWATER 78.88

TOTAL 194,585.06

10



CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY

SORTED TRANSACTION WARRANT REGISTER

09/22/2010 (Printed 09/17/2010 08:56) PAGE 11

DEPARTMENT AMOUNT

001 000 000

001 000 011

001 000 012

001 000 013

001 000 014

001 000 015

001 000 017

001 000 018

001 000 019

001 000 020

001 000 021

001 000 022

001 000 024

001 000 062

FUND CURRENT EXPENSE FUND

101 000 076

FUND PARK FUND

102 000 036

FUND CEMETERY FUND

103 000 042

FUND STREET FUND

104 000 042

FUND ARTERIAL STREET FUND

105 000 072

FUND LIBRARY FUND

330 000 082

FUND 1996 FIRE STATION CONST FUND

332 000 082

FUND PWTF SEWER CONSTRUCTION FUND

401 000 000

401 000 035

FUND SEWER FUND

412 000 000

412 000 037

FUND SOLID WASTE FUND

425 000 000

425 000 D39

FUND STORMWATER

TOTAL

1.52

257.38

6,058.95

254.94

496.24

2,868.73

1,059.94

80.76

569.97

848.21

19,905.33

2,679.51

44.66

84.16

35,210.30

3,901.07

3,901.07

915.56

915.56

12,715.70

12,715.70

7,457.49

7,457.49

1,089.79

1,089.79

7,984.86

7,984.86

44,639.18

44,639.18

53.24

17,512.26

17,565.50

19.29

63,007.44

63,026.73

3.49

75.39

78.88

194,585.06



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA
REGULAR MEETING

SEP 2 2 2010

7:00 P.M. COUNCIL CHAMBERS
AGENDA NO

CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY
Sedro-Woolley Municipal Building

325 Metcalf Street
Sedro-Woolley, WA 98284

Phone (360) 855-1661
Fax (360) 855-0707

Mark A. Freiberger, PE
Director of Public Works/City Engineer

MEMO TO: City Council and Mayor Anderson

FROM: Mark A. Freiberger, PE

RE: Possible Contract Amendment 1
Contract 2010-PS-09 Construction Contract Administration and Inspection
Services for the SR9 Sanitary Sewer Extension Project
Reichhardt & Ebe Engineering, Inc.

DATE: September 17, 2010 (for Council action September 22, 2010)

ISSUE:

Shall council move to authorize Mayor Anderson to execute Amendment 1 to contract 2010-PS-09 with
Reichhardt & Ebe Engineering, Inc. of Sedro-Woolley, WA for Construction Contract Administration and
Inspections Services for the SR9 Sanitary Sewer Extension Project in the amount of $41,059.56?

BACKGROUND/ DISCUSSION:

During the course of the construction contract for the SR9 Township Sewer project, the city requested
additional support services from Reichhardt & Ebe related to construction management for the project.
These additional services are enumerated on the attached Amendment and supporting document.

FINANCIAL:

Funds for this project are available from the Account 401 Cumulative Sewer Reserve. The construction
management budget for this contract was estimated at $33,425 or 15% of construction in the Special
Benefit District calculation used in the ordinance. R&E's original budget was $30,909; the revised budget
adds $10,150.33 for a new total of $41,059.56. This will be the maximum amount payable for the CM
work.

The construction contract came in approximately $27,000 under budget, so overall the construction cost
including the construction management will be under budget. This will be addressed in detail with the
contract close out and Special Benefit District fee determination process.

MOTION:

Move to authorize Mayor Anderson to execute Amendment 1 to contract 2010-PS-09 with
Reichhardt & Ebe Engineering, Inc. of Sedro-Woolley, WA for Construction Contract
Administration and Inspection Services for the SR9 Sanitary Sewer Extension Project in the
amount of $41,059.56.

2010-9-17 Amd 1 2010-PS-09 to R&E.doc 9/17/2010 10:16:26 AM



vao-woott ,a Mt SMITH Cak4r/

AMENDMENT NO. 1

To the ON-CALL PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT No. 2009-PS-09
Dated May 26, 2010
Between The City of Sedro-Woolley, Washington
And Reichhardt & Ebe Engineering, Inc.

This Amendment revises the above contract as follows:

Section 5 Compensation and Schedule of Payments is revised as follows:
City shall pay the Contractor its hourly rates pursuant to the schedule set forth on Exhibit B.
The Contractor shall be paid monthly on the basis of invoices for compensation earned by the
Contractor during the billing period, as agreed by the parties. Payment shall be made within ten (10)
days after approval of the voucher by the City council.
Cost not to exceed $41,059.56 without prior approval of the Director of Public Works.

All other terms and conditions remain as per the original agreement.

DATED this 23rd day of September, 2010.

CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY
A Washington municipal corporation

By:
City Attorney/City Supervisor

CONTRACTOR:

Reichhardt & Ebe Engineering, Inc.

By:

Agreement 2009-PS-09 R&E CM SR9 Sewer Ext AMD 1.doc Page 1 of 1



REICHHARDT & EBE ENGINEERING, INC.
CONSULTING ENGINEERS

813 Metcalf Street 1 Sedro -Woolley, WA 98284 I Telephone 360-855-1713 I Fax: 360-855-1164

September 16, 2010

City of Sedro-Woolley
Mr. Mark Freiberger, PE, Director of Public Works/City Engineer
325 Metcalf Street
Sedro-Woolley, WA 98284

Subject: SR9 Sewer Extension Project / Supplement for Additional Work

Mr. Freiberger,

The above-mentioned project has reached physical completion. As you are aware, R&E has
provided additional services above and beyond the originally agreed upon scope of work and in
doing so, has incurred additional costs. R&E had hoped that although additional work had been
performed the costs would not exceed the original budget but unfortunately, we previously
learned this would not be the case and informed you of such. During prior conversations, you
requested a supplementary agreement be developed to address increased additional costs incurred
by R&E. I am providing the following brief summary of the known additional work performed
by R&E;

1. Property owner sewer connection coordination: 
At the City's request, R&E staff coordinated with property owners along the project limits to
determine desired future connection locations, desired connection locations on property
owner site and field adjustments of plan connection point locations. The property owner
sewer connection work required R&E staff to perform additional coordination, administrative
activities and field activities. This additional work could not have been anticipated while
preparing the originally agreed upon scope of work and man hour estimate.

2. Verizon pedestal relocation: 
To accommodate scheduling limitations, the SR9 Sewer Extension Project contractor
performed Verizon pedestal relocation and reinstallation. The addition of the Verizon
pedestal relocation and reinstallation work required R&E staff to perform additional
coordination, inspection and administrative activities. This additional work could not have
been anticipated while preparing the originally agreed upon scope of work and man hour
estimate.

3. Fire station #2 construction entrance: 
In the beginning weeks of construction, the accessibility of the fire station #2 site to the SR9
Sewer Extension Project contractor for stockpiling was identified as potentially impacting
work on the fire station #2 site. At the City's approval, a new construction entrance was
added at the North end of the fire station #2 site. The addition of the new construction
entrance to facilitate SR9 Sewer Extension Project stockpiling required R&E staff to perform
additional coordination, inspection and administrative activities. This additional work could
not have been anticipated while preparing the originally agreed upon scope of work and man
hour estimate.



4. PSE pole removal and replacement: 
On the week of 7/9/10 a PSE pole south of SSMH 76 and within the project corridor was
identified by PSE representatives as needing removed and replaced due to deteriorated
condition. The removal and replacement of this PSE pole required R&E staff to perform
additional coordination, inspection and administrative activities. This additional work could
not have been anticipated while preparing the originally agreed upon scope of work and man
hour estimate.

5. PUD unidentified abandoned waterline: 
During construction activities on 7/13/10 the SR9 Sewer Extension Project contractor
exposed an unknown 4" PUD waterline while excavating for the HDD exit pit near SSMH76.
Although the unidentified PUD waterline was found to be an abandoned line, its presence
required R&E staff to perform additional inspection, coordination and administrative
activities. This additional work could not have been anticipated while preparing the originally
agreed upon scope of work and man hour estimate,

6. Defective HDD crossing: 
On 7/14/10 a field check of a newly installed HDD sanitary sewer pipe across SR9 to the fire
station #2 site found deficient work to exist. The deficient HDD crossing work required
abandonment of the newly installed pipe and replacement with a new crossing. This work
required R&E to perform additional inspection, coordination and administrative activities.
This additional work could not have been anticipated while preparing the originally agreed
upon scope of work and man hour estimate.

7. Additional survey: 
At the contractors request and after City approval, additional survey was provided the
contractor to facilitate construction activities. This work required R&E to perform additional
coordination and administrative activities. This additional work could not have been
anticipated while preparing the originally agreed upon scope of work and man hour estimate.

8. Additional sanitary side service connection: 
At the direction of the City, R&E was asked to facilitate the addition of approximately 110 ft
of new 6" sanitary sewer pipe, abandon existing sanitary sewer pipe, new sanitary sewer
cleanout and connection to existing sanitary sewer. This work required R&E to perform
additional coordination, design, inspection and administrative activities. This additional
work could not have been anticipated while preparing the originally agreed upon scope of
work and man hour estimate.

9. SSMH 73 adjust to finish grade: 
At the direction of the City, R&E facilitated the additional work required to adjust SSMH 73
to finish grade. After the project had begun, R&E was informed that just south of the project
limits and in the shoulder of SR9, SSMH 73 had been paved over and was not accessible to
the City sewer department. This work required R&E to perform additional coordination,
inspection and administrative activities. This additional work could not have been
anticipated while preparing the originally agreed upon scope of work and man hour estimate.



10. Fire station #2 Change Order for HDD waterline Sc. conduit crossing: 
At the City's request, R&E performed coordination with the SR9 Sewer Extension Project
contractor and City for the possibility of adding additional waterline and conduit crossing
change order work to accommodate needed fire station #2 change order work. Although the
work was completed by an alternate contractor R&E performed additional work at the City's
request. The additional work resulting from this coordination could not have been
anticipated while preparing the originally agreed upon scope of work and man hour estimate.

11. Fire station #2 water hammer / waterline break: 
After an apparent water hammer occurred on 8/4/10 during fire station #2 contractor water
system work, the residence at 1285 N. Township on the SR9 Sewer Extension Project site
experienced a waterline failure that resulted in flooding underneath the structure. As a result
of this event, R&E staff performed an initial investigation and coordinated with; property
owner, City staff, PUD and fire station contractor, as well as performing additional
administrative activities. This additional work could not have been anticipated while
preparing the originally agreed upon scope of work and man hour estimate.

12. Contractor Submittal Inefficiencies: 
As a result of the contractors relative lack of experience with the administrative process
associated with municipal projects, multiple iterations of submittal review as well as
instruction and contractor guidance was needed for R&E to administer the project. The
extent of additional work resulting from the multiple iterations and instruction R&E provided
during the submittal process could not have been anticipated while preparing the originally
agreed upon scope of work and man hour estimate.

13. Change Order Processing / Change Order #1 
As a result of contractor material deficiencies, Change Order #1 was processed by R&E to
adequately credit the City with a material deficiency credit for Gravel Base requiring
additional work from R&E. This additional work could not have been anticipated while
preparing the originally agreed upon scope of work and man hour estimate.



As you can see from the previously described items, R&E has performed a significant amount of
additional work that could not have been anticipated when developing the original budget. The
original agreed upon budget for R&E's construction services for this project was $30,909.23.
Work to date, above and beyond our original contract amount described by items 1-13 is
$10,150.33. As indicated in section 5 of the City's professional services agreement these
additional costs are being provided for your approval.

To summarize:

Total Costs incurred by R&E to date ............................................................ $41,059.56
R&E original contract amount:    ..$30,909.23
R&E Invoices to date     $21,721.40

R&E Supplement Request for work described in items 1-13 ..................... $10,150.33

R&E feels this was a successful project and the City received benefit from the additional work
performed. At this time, R&E feels the supplement request for costs incurred to date are justified
by the described items and as a courtesy to the City will write off future cost incurred beyond this
supplement request necessary for project closeout.

Please contact me with any questions or if you require additional information regarding this
matter.

Respectfully,

Cody R. Hart P.E.
Reichhardt & Ebe Engineering



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA
REGULAR MEETING

SEP 2 2 2010
CITY OF 	7:00 P.M. COUNCILS4-IAMBERS

SSOtilVt2P14 	AGENDA NO. 1n4 P_RMLA.MATJUN 

UNITED WAY CAMPAIGN IN SKAGIT COUNTY
SEPTEMBER, OCTOBER, NOVEMBER 2010

WHEREAS, the citizens of Sedro-Woolley are characterized by their
determination to help each other in times of need; and

WHEREAS, this spirit of caring for one another is expressed by volunteers
working with the United Way of Skagit County to raise funds for health and human
service needs; and

WHEREAS, there are many local non profit agencies that are supported by
United Way so health and human service needs can be met; and

WHEREAS, the United Way Campaign is an effective and efficient way to raise
funds to support the very important work of these agencies

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AND IT IS HEREBY ORDERED
BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY that September,
October and November are proclaimed "United Way Campaign Months" in the City of
Sedro-Woolley. The Mayor and City Council encourage everyone in the community to
step forward with vigor and generosity to help your fellow man by volunteering and
contributing financially to the United Way.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, WE HEREUNTO SET OUR HANDS AND
AFFIX THE OFFICIAL SEAL OF OUR OFFICE THIS 22nd DAY OF September,
2010.

Sedro-Woolley City Council

(seal) Sedro-Woolley, Washington

Mayor

City Council Members:

Attest:



AGENCIES/PROGRAMS IN SKAGIT COUNTY RECEIVING FUNDING FROM
THE UNITED WAY OF SKAGIT COUNTY 2010

THE AMERICAN RED CROSS  Islands Chapter and Mt. Baker Chapter Provide relief to victims of
disaster, helps families prevent, prepare for, and respond to emergencies. Provides training in
CPR, First Aid and Babysitting.

THE ANACORTES FAMILY CENTER  Provides emergency and transitional shelter for Skagit
County families with children, single moms with children and single women.

BOY SCOUTS OF AMERICA -Mt. Baker Council Provides programs for youth which emphasize
character development, leadership, cooperation and fitness.

BREAD OF LIFE FOOD BANK  Provides food to low income families in the Marblemount
/Rockport area.

BRIGID COLLINS SKAGIT VALLEY FAMILY SUPPORT CENTER  Provides case management,
children's sexual assault therapy and parenting education to treat and/or prevent child abuse and
neglect.

CAMP FIRE LISA Sailfish Council  A youth development program emphasizing life skills, ethics
and leadership. Operates Camp Kirby for members and non-members.

CATHOLIC COMMUNITY SERVICES WW-NW Provides nondenominational mental health
therapy, family support and immigration services to low income children and families.

CHINOOK ENTERPRISES  Provides vocational training and job placement and assistance for
individuals with disabilities.

COMPASS HEALTH Provides mental health and chemical dependency treatment. Components
include crisis intervention and assistance for children, adults, seniors and veterans.

CONCRETE FOOD BANK Provides food to low-income families in the Concrete area.

GIRL SCOUTS OF WESTERN WASHINGTON  Provides programs for girls from age 5 to 17 to
build character and skills. Emphasizes strong values and self worth.

IDEAS FOR LIVING Provides training and support to enhance basic life skills for people with
limited resources. The goal is to increase self-sufficiency.

MEALS ON WHEELS Delivers meals on a regular basis to seniors and disabled shut-ins
throughout the county.

MOUNT VERNON COMMUNITY WELLNESS COUNCIL Provides programs in Mount Vernon to
serve youth and families and promote a safe and healthy community

NORTH CASCADES HEALTH COUNCIL  Provides programs in Sedro-Woolley that promote a
healthy, safe, substance-free and violence-free community. (over)



NORTHWEST YOUTH SERVICES  Serves youth/families across Skagit County with services
related to housing, counseling, foster care, and community inclusion for youth offenders.

REVERIE OUTREACH A soup kitchen program that serves hundreds of nutritious meals to the
working poor and homeless the last five days of each month.

RETIRED SENIOR VOLUNTEER PROGRAM (R.S.V.P.) Recruits senior volunteers (age 55 and
over) and matches them in meaningful assignments to meet local needs.

SEA MAR COMMUNITY HEALTH CENTERS Provides health care and social services for low-
income people and the uninsured with special emphasis on the Hispanic community.

SECRET HARBOR Provides a continuum of services including residential treatment and foster
care for youth with emotional and behavioral disabilities as well as older care

SKAGIT ADULT DAY CARE  Provides supervised care and social activities for individuals with
memory loss and/or physical disabilities.

SKAGIT COUNCIL ON AGING  Provides senior centers in all major communities in the county to
enhance social interaction and activities beneficial to older adults.

SKAGIT COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION AGENCY  Umbrella agency of 25+ programs including
Emergency Family Shelter, Adult Literacy and Women Infants and Children (WIC).

SKAGIT DOMESTIC VIOLENCE AND SEXUAL ASSAULT SERVICES  Provides emergency shelter
and counseling for victims of domestic violence and sexual assault.

SKAGIT HABITAT FOR HUMANITY Provides expertise, labor, materials and loans to local low
income families as they build and renovate homes for use and ownership.

SKAGIT VALLEY FAMILY YMCA Provides programs and activities for individuals and families.
Facilities include a gymnasium, strength training room, and a six-lane pool.

SPARC (Skagit Preschool and Resource Center)  Provides specialized programs for children with
special needs (ages birth to six). Also provides family education and support.

THE LANDING A support program for children who have suffered the loss of a friend or family
member due to illness, injury, homicide or suicide.

VISITING NURSE HOME CARE  Helps elderly and disabled people live at home with
housekeeping, errands, licensed nursing and personal care - and supports wellness.

VOLUNTEERS OF AMERICA  Provides mental health counseling, dispute resolution,
information/referral, mentoring and child care training.

YOUTHNET Provides foster care, parent support, truancy prevention and independent living
skills training to high-risk youth and families. Operates Emerson Alternative High School.

R 9-15-2010



SUBJECT: PUBLIC COMMENT

Name:
Address:
Narrative:

Name:
Address
Narrative:

Name:
Address:
Narrative:

Name:
Address:
Narrative:

Name:
Address:
Narrative:

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA
REGULAR MEETING

SEP 2 2 2010

7:00 P.M. COUNCIL CHAMBERS
AGENDA NO ___ 07



T p

HEAR' S  



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA
REGULAR MEETING

SEP 2 2 2010

7:00 P.M. COUNCIL CHAlviBERS
AGENDA NO.

Planning Department
Sedro-Woolley Municipal Building

325 Metcalf Street
Sedro-Woolley, WA 98284

Phone (360) 855-0771
Fax (360) 855-0733

IHll^ll O:

To: City Council
Mayor Anderson

From: Jack Moore,
Planning Di ector/ Building Official

Date: September 22, 2010

Subject: OPEN PUBLIC HEARING- Alternate payment schedule for impact fees and general
facility charges for single-family houses constructed for resale (spec homes) (2nd READ)

ISSUE 
Should the Council approve the attached ordinance to allow an alternate payment schedule for
i mpact fees and general facility charges for single-family houses constructed for resale?

PROJECT DESCRIPTION / HISTORY
The topic of timing of payment of impact fees was briefly discussed at the August 25, 2010 council
meeting. A proposed exception to allow a temporary deferral of payment of impact fees and general
facility charges was presented to Council at the September 8, 2010 meeting.

Attached is a proposed modification to SWMC Titles 13 and 15 which would allow owners/applicants
to pay impact fees at one of the following stages of their project, whichever occurs first:

1. Closing of sale--paid through escrow; or
2. Prior to occupancy of the building

Please note that the previous proposal included a provision that included a maximum 12-month
deferral for payment. Upon further inquiry, the planning department found that including this
provision greatly reduced the effectiveness of this proposal—lending agencies would still be required
to include the fee in the construction loan. Thus, this provision has been removed from the
proposed ordinance.

Included with this memo is:

Exhibit A – Proposed ordinance for modification of SWMC Titles 13 and 15; and
Exhibit B – Memo from SICBA, supporting temporary deferral of payment of impact fees

RECOMMENDED ACTIONS

1. Hold Open Public Hearing
2. Make a motion to adopt ordinance to allow an alternate payment schedule for impact fees
and general facility charges for single-family houses constructed for resale



ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE MODIFYING SWMC TITLES 13 AND 15, GRANTING AN OPTIONAL
PAYMENT TIMEFRAME FOR IMPACT FEES AND GENERAL FACILITY CHARGES

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of state law, Chapter 35A.63 of the Revised Code of Washington
(RCW) and Chapter 36.70A RCW, the Sedro-Woolley City Council has adopted the Sedro-Woolley
Municipal Code (SWMC), including Titles 13 and 15, which regulates impact fees and general facility
charges; and

WHEREAS, as a result of the current downturn in the local economy, a diminishing number of new
residential units are being built, which adversely impacts the City's housing stock, local economy and
revenue for providing governmental services; and

WHEREAS, without intervention, the housing market may continue to languish and adverse
consequences of decreased revenues, abandoned projects and underutilized land will occur; and

WHEREAS, a need exists to amend Titles 13 and 15 to afford more flexibility to applicants on the timing
of payment of Street Impact Fees, Park Impact Fees, Fire Impact Fees, School Impact Fees, and Sewer
General Facility Charges; and

WHEREAS, the ordinance amendments are procedural in nature, and therefore exempt from the State
Environmental Policy Act (SEPA) review; and

WHEREAS, the City Council finds the proposed amendments to the SWMC contained in Sections 1
through 5 to be consistent with and to implement the intent of the Sedro-Woolley Comprehensive Plan;
and

WHEREAS, the City Council has concluded that it is in the best interest of the public health, safety and
welfare to adopt this ordinance;

WHEREAS, the City Council adopts the forgoing as its findings of fact justifying its adoption of this
Ordinance;

NOW THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY,
WASHINGTON, DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. Sedro-Woolley Municipal Code 15.60.110(A) shall be modified as follows:

15.60.110 Payment of fees.
A. All developers shall pay an impact fee in accordance with the provisions of this chapter at the time
that the applicable building permit is ready for issuance.

Exception: For complete building permit applications received on or prior to December 30, 2011,
at the time of issuance of any single-family residential building permit for a dwelling unit that is being
constructed for resale, the applicant/owner may elect to record a covenant, in a form to be approved by
the city attorney, against the property that requires payment of the impact fees due and owed in
accordance with this chapter and any other applicable ro-W()olle Municipal Code, by
providing for full payment through escrow of the fees due and owed to be paid at the time of closing of



sale of the lot or unit; but in no case shall the structure be occupied prior to payment of impact fees. The
awarding of credits shall not alter the applicability of this section. 

It is the intention of this chapter that fees shall generally be due at time of issuance of building permits,
rather than at time of subdivision or construction of unoccupied infrastructure not generating immediate
impacts. However, if no building permit will be required of a project, then the impact fee may be assessed
for any other development activity permit or development approval generating an impact for which the
fee is required. The fee paid shall be the amount in effect as of the date of the permit application or
approval is deemed completed and vested.

Section 2. Sedro-Woolley Municipal Code 13.16.035 shall be modified as follows:

13.16.035 General facilities charge—Separate fund.
In addition to any permit fees and other charges required by city ordinance or regulation, and not in lieu
thereof, at the time of building permit issuance, (or if no building permit, then at time of connection or
commencement of use,) there shall be a general facilities charge, for connection to the city sewer system
which shall be paid in the sum of eight thousand nine hundred twenty-six dollars per equivalent
residential unit (ERU), to be determined as set forth in this section.

Exception: For complete building permit applications received on or prior to December 30, 2011,
at the time of issuance of any single-family residential building permit for a dwelling unit that is being
constructed for resale the ae olicant/owner ma elect to record a covenant in a form to be a • •roved b
the city attorney, against the property that requires payment of the impact fees due and owed in
accordance with this chapter and any other applicable sections of the Sedro-Woolley Municipal Code, by
providing for full payment through escrow of the fees due and owed to be paid at the time of closing of
sale of the lot or unit' but in no case shall the structure be occu ied .rior to a  ent of impact fees. The
awarding of credits shall not alter the applicability of this section. 

Section 3. Sedro-Woolley Municipal Code 13.16.037(C) [Utility connection fee North Reed Street]
shall be modified as follows:

C. Time of Payment. The special connection fee shall be due at the time of application for a building
permit, if for a new structure, or at time actual connection or connection permit application, if for an
existing structure.

Exception: For complete building permit applications received on or prior to December 30, 2011,
at the time of issuance of any single-family residential building permit for a dwelling unit that is being
constructed for resale, the applicant/owner may elect to record a covenant, in a form to be approved by
the city attorney, against the property that requires payment of the impact fees due and owed in
accordance with this chapter and any other applicable sections of the Sedro-Woolley Municipal Code. by
providing for full payment through escrow of the fees due and owed to be paid at the time of closing of
sale of the lot or unit; but in no case shall the structure be occupied prior to payment of impact fees. The 
awarding of credits shall not alter the applicability of this section. 

Section 4. Sedro-Woolley Municipal Code 13.16.039(C) [Utility connection fee—Fruitdale Road] shall
be modified as follows:

C. Time of Payment. The special connection fee shall be due at the time of application for a building
permit, if for a new structure, or at time actual connection or connection permit application, if for an
existing structure.

Exception: For complete building permit applications received on or prior to December 30, 2011,
at the time of issuance of any single-family residential building permit for a dwelling unit that is being
constructed for resale, the applicant/owner may elect to record a covenant, in a form to be approved by



the city attorney, against the property that requires payment of the impact fees due and owed in
accordance with this chapter and any other applicable sections of the Sedro-Woolley Municipal Code, by
providing for full payment through escrow of the fees due and owed to be paid at the time of closing of
sale of the lot or unit; but in no case shall the structure be occupied prior to payment of impact fees. The
awarding of credits shall not alter the applicability of this section. 

Section 5. Sedro-Woolley Municipal Code 13.16.038 (C) [Utility connection fee—Cook Road-Trail
Road] shall be modified as follows:

C. Time of Payment. The special connection fee shall be due at the time of application for a building
permit, if for a new structure, or at time actual connection or connection permit application, if for an
existing structure

Exception: For complete building permit applications received on or prior to December 30, 2011,
at the time of issuance of any single-family residential building permit for a dwelling unit that is being
constructed for resale, the applicant/owner may elect to record a covenant, in a form to be approved by
the city attorney, against the property that requires payment of the impact fees due and owed in
accordance with this chapter and any other applicable sections of the Sedro-Woolley Municipal Code, by
providing for full payment through escrow of the fees due and owed to be paid at the time of closing of
sale of the lot or unit; but in no case shall the structure be occupied prior to payment of impact fees. The
awarding of credits shall not alter the applicability of this section. 

Section 6. This ordinance shall be effective five (5) days after passage and publication as provided by
law.

Section 7. The provisions of this resolution are declared to be severable, and if any section, sentence,
clause or phrase of this resolution shall for any reason be held invalid or unconstitutional or if the
application of this ordinance to any person or circumstances shall be held invalid or unconstitutional, such
decisions shall not affect the validity of the remaining sections, sentences, clause or phrases of this
resolution.

PASSED by majority vote of the members of the Sedro-Woolley City Council this
, 2010, and signed in authentication of its passage this

, 2010.    

	day of
day of                    

Mike Anderson, Mayor     

Attest:        

Patsy Nelson, Finance Director       

Approved as to form:        

Eron Berg, City Attorney        

Published:



Support Alternate Collection of Impact Fees

Local Economic Stimulus Measure

The issue: Currently, homebuilders are required to pay impact fees at the time of permitting-
before the impacts of a home occur. This state of affairs means that builders must finance
impact fees along with land acquisition and building costs, increasing the cost of building
homes. In this era of tight credit, many builders are not able to obtain funds to begin building,
especially when impact fees are included.

Changing the point of impact fee collection will improve the prospects for builders to build and
cities to collect fees to accommodate that growth.

The proposal: This proposal requires cities to offer to builders and developers an alternative
method of collecting impact fees at closing of sale, not at permit collection. In order to
guarantee payment of the fee by the builder, builders will agree to record a covenant against
title that must be satisfied at closing. The model is alive and well in the city of Sammamish and
is being considered by a number of other cities and in the region.

Benefits of this approach:

o Cities will still get impact fees paid at the time of occupancy, when the impacts occur.
o The approach is optional for builders. If a builder or developer wants to pay fees

traditionally, they can.
o Fee payments are guaranteed by virtue of the recorded covenant that must be satisfied

at closing by the builder.
o More builders and developers will qualify for financing, which means more permits,

more jobs and more revenues for growing communities.
• The approach is not novel; it is current law in some jurisdictions.

Help the Economy Grow, Support Alternative Collection of Impact Fees

For more information, contact:

Cory Ertel at 360-757-6919 or corv(&sicba.orz

Skagit/Island Counties Builders Association



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA
REGULAR MEETING

SEP 2 2 2010

7:00 P.M. COUNCIL CHAMBERS
AGENDA NO. . 

Planning Department
Sedro-Woolley Municipal Building

325 Metcalf Street
Sedro-Woolley, WA 98284

Phone (360) 855-0771
Fax (360) 855-0733

MEMO:

To: City Council
Mayor Anderson

From: Jack Moore
Planning Director/ Building Official

Date: September 22, 2010

Subject: OPEN PUBLIC HEARING - Land use permit and application economic hardship
extensions (1 st read)

ISSUE

Should the City Council adopt the attached ordinance to allow extensions to expiration timeframes
for certain land use permits and applications due to the current economic climate?

PROJECT DESCRIPTION / HISTORY

The economy has suffered a downturn which has created economic hardships and tightening of
credit markets resulting in situations where developers and property owners are unable to
commence or complete projects in a timely manner.

The Planning Department met with the City Council Planning Committee on July 14 to present the
concept of granting extensions for projects that have received approvals but where the applicant has
been unable to proceed due to problems securing financing. The Committee recommended that a
specific proposal be brought to the City Council for consideration.

Exhibit A Ordinance to allow extensions to expiration timeframes for certain land use permits and
applications due to the current economic climate

RECOMMENDED ACTIONS 

1. Hold open public hearing

2. 1 st Read- no further action requested



ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE MODIFYING THE SEDRO-WOOLLEY MUNICIPAL CODE TO
ALLOW FOR A ONE-TIME ECONOMIC HARDSHIP EXTENSION OF LAND USE
APPROVALS, APPROVED BUILDING PERMIT APPLICATIONS AND ISSUED
BUILDING PERMITS

WHEREAS, the state, county and City of Sedro-Woolley have suffered a severe economic
downturn which has created economic hardships and tightening of credit markets resulting in
situations where developers and property owners are unable to commence or complete projects in
a timely manner; and

WHEREAS, the City of Sedro-Woolley can reduce and alleviate the pressure from the current
economic climate and market conditions for projects that have received approvals but have not
been completed within existing time limitations by extending expiration dates; and

WHEREAS, Sections 1 through 5 of this ordinance amend the municipal code to allow a one-
time economic hardship extension for certain land use and development approvals; and

WHEREAS, the Sedro-Woolley City Council conducted a Open Public Hearing on this date,
with appropriate public notice provided; and

WHEREAS, the ordinance amendments are procedural in nature, and therefore exempt from the
State Environmental Policy Act (SEPA) review; and

WHEREAS, the City Council finds the proposed amendments to the SWMC contained in
Sections 1 through 5 to be consistent with and to implement the intent of the Sedro-Woolley
Comprehensive Plan; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has concluded that it is in the best interest of the public health,
safety and welfare to adopt this ordinance;

WHEREAS, the City Council adopts the forgoing as its findings of fact justifying its adoption of
this Ordinance;

NOW THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY,
WASHINGTON, DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. SWMC 16.08.028(C) shall be modified as follows:

16.08.028 Effect of preliminary plat approval.
A. Approval of the preliminary plat shall constitute authorization for the subdivider to develop
the subdivision facilities and improvements as required in the approved preliminary plat upon
issuance of the final plat. Development shall be in strict accordance with the plans and
specifications as prepared or approved by the city engineer and subject to any conditions imposed
by the hearing body.
B. No subdivision requirements which become effective after the approval of a preliminary plat
for a subdivision shall apply to such subdivision unless the hearing body determines that a change
in conditions created a serious threat to the public health or safety.
C. Preliminary plat approval is valid for five years unless extended pursuant to SWMC
16.08.064.
Exception: Land use and development approvals shall be granted a one-time, three-year
economic hardship extension from the original date of expiration if the approval was set to expire
between January 1, 2008 and December 31, 2011. 



Section 2. SWMC 16.08.064(A) shall be modified as follows:

16.08.064 Filing with city engineer.
A. Time of Filing.
1. A final plat meeting all the requirements of Chapter 58.17 RCW and of this chapter, shall be
filed with the city engineer within five years of the date of preliminary plat approval. As required
by RCW 58.17.140, an applicant who files a written request at least thirty days before the
expiration of the five-year period shall be granted one one-year extension upon showing that the
applicant has attempted in good faith to submit the final plat within the five-year period.
Approval of the extension may contain additional conditions and requirements for the preliminary
plat.
Exception: Land use and development approvals shall be granted a one-time, three-year
economic hardship extension from the original date of expiration if the approval was set to expire 
between January 1, 2008 and December 31, 2011. 

Section 3. SWMC 16.12.050 shall be modified as follows:

16.12.050 Planning director's decision.
If the planning director determines that the requirements of this chapter are met, or may be met
upon compliance with specified conditions, the planning director shall inform the applicant in
written findings of the decision to approve the application and the conditions of the approval, if
any, and may return the proposed short plat to the applicant for modification or correction. When
the planning director has determined that: (1) the short plat contains the certificates, dedication
instruments and statements of approval required by state law and this chapter, (2) the short plat
and all legal descriptions are technically correct, and (3) the planning director determines that the
short plat qualifies for approval or approval with conditions, the director shall notify the applicant
and provide for all notices required by SWMC Chapter 2.90 for administrative short plat
approvals. If no person or party requests an open record hearing before the hearing body within
the time allowed by SWMC Chapter 2.90, the short plat shall be folinally approved without
further hearing. Preliminary short plat approval is valid for three years unless extended by the
following procedure. As allowed by RCW 58.17.140, an applicant who files a written request at
least thirty days before the expiration of the three-year period shall be granted one one-year
extension upon showing that the applicant has attempted in good faith to submit the short plat for
final approval within the three-year period. Approval of the extension may contain additional
conditions and requirements for the preliminary short plat.
Exception: Land use and development approvals shall be granted a one-time, three-year
economic hardship extension from the original date of expiration if the approval was set to expire
between January 1, 2008 and December 31, 2011. 

Section 4. SWMC 15.04.040(F) shall be modified as follows:

15.04.040 Fees—Building permit and plan review fees.
A. General. Fees shall be assessed in accordance with the provisions of this section.
B. Fees shall be assessed as designated in the current city of Sedro-Woolley building, planning
and engineering fee schedule, as adopted by resolution of the city council and on file with the city
clerk.
C. Plan Review Fees. The applicant shall pay the plan review fee at time of submitting a
building permit application.
D. Building Permit Fees. The applicant shall pay the building permit fee prior to the building
department issuing the building permit.
E. A building permit is required before any mobile home can be placed in the city.
F. Payment of Permit Fees. Upon notification by the city that a permit application has been
approved, the applicant shall submit payment to the city for all permit fees for which approval has
been received prior to permit application expiration. All permit applications shall expire six



months from the date the application was submitted. Notification shall be given by any means
reasonably calculated by the city to provide the applicant with notice that the applicant's permit
may be issued, and may include notice by telephone, facsimile, or through the U.S. mail. The
applicant shall promptly advise the city of any changes that would limit or otherwise hinder the
city in contacting the applicant. Upon payment of all permit fees, permit shall be valid for two 
years from date permit is issued. 
Exception: Land use and development approvals shall be granted a one-time, three-year
economic hardship extension from the original date of expiration if the approval was set to expire
between January 1, 2008 and December 31, 2011. 

Section 5. This ordinance shall be effective five (5) days after passage and publication as
provided by law.

Section 6. The provisions of this resolution are declared to be severable, and if any section,
sentence, clause or phrase of this resolution shall for any reason be held invalid or
unconstitutional or if the application of this ordinance to any person or circumstances shall be
held invalid or unconstitutional, such decisions shall not affect the validity of the remaining
sections, sentences, clause or phrases of this resolution.

PASSED by majority vote of the members of the Sedro-Woolley City Council this day
of , 2010, and signed in authentication of its passage this day
of , 2010.

Mike Anderson, Mayor

Attest:

Patsy Nelson, Finance Director

Approved as to form:

Eron Berg, City Attorney

Published:





CITY COUNCIL AGENDA
REGULAR MEETING

SEP 2 2 2010

7:00 P.M. COUNCIL AMBERS
AGENDA NO. 

Planning Department
Sedro-Woolley Municipal Building

325 Metcalf Street
Sedro-Woolley, WA 98284

Phone (360) 855-0771
Fax (360) 855-0733

MEMO:

To: City Council
Mayor Anderson

From: Jack Moore
Planning Director/ Building Official

Date: September 22, 2010

Subject: Amendments to Chapter 17.48 SWMC and the Design Standards and Guidelines for
recreation areas (Private Parks) within subdivisions

ISSUE
Should the Council approve the attached ordinance to amend Chapter 17.38 and the Sedro-Woolley
Design Standards and Guidelines regarding homeowner association-owned recreation areas within
subdivisions?

PROJECT DESCRIPTION / HISTORY
At the direction of the City Council, the Planning Commission considered revisions to the City's
regulations and design standards and guidelines for private recreation areas in new subdivisions
and multi-family developments. These small, private parks, are primarily owned and maintained by
homeowner associations, The Planning Commission held several public meetings and over the
spring and summer of 2010 to gather input on how the existing private parks are working, and how
they might be improved in the future. After close consideration of the current regulations for Private
Parks and reviewing the community input received, the Planning Commission made several
recommendations that are included in the attached ordinance, as well as the attached Findings of
Fact, Conclusions and Recommendations.

Included with this memo is:

Exhibit A — Planning Commission Findings of Fact, Conclusions and Recommendations
Exhibit B — Proposed ordinance for amendments to Chapter 17.38 SWMC and the Design
Standards and Guidelines

RECOMMENDED ACTIONS 
Make a motion to adopt Ordinance to amend Chapter 17.38 SWMC and the Sedro-Woolley
Design Standards and Guidelines regarding home-owner association-owned recreation areas within
subdivisions.



Exhibit A —

Planning Commission Findings of Fact, Conclusions and Recommendations



CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY PLANNING COMMISSION
STATE OF WASHINGTON

In the Matter of:

Amendments to Chapter 17.38 SWMC
and the Sedro-Woolley Design Standards

and Guidelines regarding home-owner
association-owned recreation areas within

subdivisions

PLANNING COMMISSION
FINDINGS OF FACT,
CONCLUSIONS AND
RECOMMENDATION

This matter having come regularly before the City of Sedro-Woolley Planning Commission
for a public hearing on Tuesday, May 18, 2010  as described in the Planning Department
Staff Report dated May 18, 2010 and hereby attached and made a part of this decision.

Description of proposal

The Planning Commission considered revisions to the City's regulations and design
standards and guidelines for private recreation areas in new subdivisions and multi-family
developments — Private Parks — small recreation areas that are primarily owned and
maintained by home-owner associations. The Planning Commission held several public
meetings and over the spring and summer of 2010, the Planning Department sought public
comments on the community's impressions of and desires for parks with the City. After
close consideration of the current regulations for Private Parks and the community input
received, the Planning Commission makes the following Findings of Fact, Conclusions and
Recommendations:

PLANNING COMMISSION FINDINGS OF FACT

1. On January 12, 2010 the City of Sedro-Woolley Planning Commission, with prior input
form the City Council, finalized its 2010 work plan. Included on that work plan was to
review and possibly amend City regulations to improve new parks development in the
City.

2. The work plan item was associated with, but separate from, the 2010 Comprehensive
Plan update of the Parks and Recreation Element, which would occur concurrently with
the parks development rules updates. The work plan agenda — referred to as Private
Parks — would focus on the development of smaller, privately owned parks within new
subdivisions and governed by Chapter 17.38 SWMC and the Sedro-Woolley Design

Findings of Fact, Conclusions and Recommendation
Private Parks Amendments Page 1 of 3



Standards and Guidelines. The Comprehensive Plan amendments would focus on public
parks.

3. On February 16, 2010 the Planning Commission held its first public meeting to receive
testimony from City Staff and the public on Private Parks.

4. On March 16, 2010 the Planning Commission held its second public meeting on Private
Parks.

5. In April, the Planning Department posted a Parks display in City Hall with public
comment cards asking for input on parks development in the City. That display was
posted through the entire public review process.

6. The Planning Commission set up a booth for two days at the Sedro-Woolley Woodfest in
April, at which the Planning Commissioners spoke with attendees to see how the
community envisions private park development and how the existing rules can be
improved.

7. On April 20, 2010 the Planning Commission held its third public meeting on Private
Parks.

8. On May 4, 2010, the Planning Commission conducted a field trip to several private parks
throughout the City. The field trip was advertised in the Skagit Valley Herald newspaper
and with postings at each of the parks that were to be visited. Three members of the
public travelled with the Planning Commission to all of the parks, and many more
members of the public were met at the individual parks.

9. On May 8, 2010, in compliance with Chapters 17.60 and 2.90 SWMC, notice of a
May18 Public Hearing in front of the Planning Commission and opportunity to comment
on the proposal was published in the Skagit Valley Herald.

10. A staff report dated May 18, 2010 was submitted to and reviewed by the Planning
Commission prior to the public hearings. The staff report was also available to the public
ahead of the hearing date.

11. On May 18, 2010 the Planning Commission held an open record public hearing to
receive testimony from City Staff and the public.

12. At the hearing staff presented the background concerning the development of Private
Parks and recommended amendments to Chapter 17.38 SWMC and the Design
Standards and Guidelines to the Planning Commission.

13. After receiving input from the Planning Commission at the May 18 hearing, staff
proposed several changes in a memo dated June 15, 2010. That memo was available for
public review ahead of the June 15 hearing.

14. On June 15, 2010, the Planning Commission held another public meeting on Private
Parks. At that meeting, the Planning Commission made final recommendations for
amendments to Chapter 17.38 SWMC and the Design Standards and Guidelines.

15. After receiving input from the Planning Commission and the public at the May 19
hearing, staff proposed additional changes in a memo dated June 16, 2009. That memo
was available for public review ahead of the June 16 hearing. No members of the public
commented on the issue at that meeting.

16. On June 15, 2010, the Planning Commission concluded its discussion of Private Parks
and made a motion to recommend several changes to Chapter 17.38 SWMC and the
Sedro-Woolley Design Standards and Guidelines. The motion carried 4-0.

17. The proposal underwent SEPA review per WAC 197-11. A SEPA MDNS was issued
July 13, 2010. The appeal period ended on July 27, 2010; no appeals were received.

Findings of Fact, Conclusions and Recommendation
Private Parks Amendments Page 2 of 3



CERTIFICATION

ommission Chairman Date

18. The amendments recommended by the Planning Commission have been forwarded to the
Washington State Department of Commerce for 60-day review by that agency as
required by RCW 36.70A.106. That 60-Day review period ended September 7, 2010.

PLANNING COMMISSION CONCLUSIONS

1. The attached recommendations have been developed with the input of the citizens of
Sedro-Woolley represent the intent and wishes of the people.

2. The attached recommendations, having been reviewed with accordance with applicable
state and local rules, are in the best interest of the people of Sedro-Woolley.

PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATIONS

Based on the findings of fact and information submitted to the Planning Commission, the
Planning Commission recommends that the City Council approve amendments to Chapter
17.38 of the Sedro-Woolley Municipal Code as shown in Attachment 2 and the Design
Standards and Guidelines in Attachment 3.

ATTACHMENTS

o Attachment 1 — Staff Report dated May 18, 2010 (including draft amendments)
o Attachment 2 — Final PC recommended amendments to Chapter 17.38 SWMC
• Attachment 3 — Final PC recommended amendments to Design Standards and

Guidelines

Findings of Fact, Conclusions and Recommendation
Private Parks Amendments Page 3 of 3



Attachment A

Planning Commission Findings, Conclusions and Recommendation

- Staff Report Dated May 18, 2010 -



oleman, Senior PlannerJ

CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY

PLANNING DEPARTMENT
325 Metcalf Street

Sedro-Woolley, WA 98284
Phone (360) 855-0771

Fax (360) 855-0733

TRANSMITTAL & REPORT MEMORANDUM

DATE: May 18, 2010

TO: Sedro-Woolley Planning Commission

REGARDING Proposed changes to regulations and design standards governing the
construction of PRIVATE PARKS in new land subdivisions and
multi-family developments

FROM:

The following amendments are submitted by the Planning Department proposing to update
Chapter 17.36 of the Sedro-Woolley Municipal Code (SWMC) and the Design Standards
and Guidelines enabled by SWMC 15.44.030. This report serves as the staff report for the
proposed amendments and was submitted in accordance with Chapter 2.90 SWMC.

FINDINGS OF FACT

PROPOSAL

The Planning Commission is considering revisions to the City's regulations and design
standards and guidelines for private recreation areas in new subdivisions and multi-family
developments. The proposed amendments are found in Exhibits A and B to this report.

ANALYSIS

The Planning Commission has held three public meetings on the subject of private parks
starting in February 2010. In addition, the Planning Commission went on a publicly
advertised field trip to four private parks on March 4 and also set up a booth for two days at
the Sedro-Woolley Woodfest in April. At Woodfest, Planning Commissioners spoke with
attendees to see how the community envisions private park development and how the
current rules can be improved. The Planning Department has sought public input through
postings at four of the private parks and at City Hall. A public hearing is being held on the



proposed amendments on May 18, 2010 at the regularly scheduled Planning Commission
meeting. This action will require changes to the zoning code and Design Standards and
Guidelines manual.

ANALYSIS OF EXISTING RESIDENTIAL PLAY AREA REGULATIONS

The recreation areas in private developments are currently referred to as "residential play
areas." These areas are intended to serve all residents of the development, not just small
children. The current regulations are clearly catered to small children and do not require
recreation areas that accommodate teenagers or adults. Many people who commented on
the recreation areas expressed a desire to see these areas serve the entire range of potential
users, not just children. Amendments to the development regulations and design manual
have been suggested to address this issue. To reflect the desire that these areas
accommodate all ages, the name has been revised to "residential recreation areas."

The size of the recreation area has also been discussed at length. A small subdivision of
seven lots, like Sapp Place, the cul-de-sac off Sapp Road, is only required to have a play
area of 950 square feet. The Planning Commission visited this park on the March 4 field
trip. The comments from this visit were generally about how small it is, as well as it's
proximity to the public right-of-way. For reference, 950 square feet is less than one/sixth
(15.8%) the size of the smallest allowable lot size (6,000 square feet) in the R-7 zone. In
order to require a play area that is at least 6,000 square feet, the development would need to
have 108 units. A 108 unit development should require far more usable recreation area than
6,000 square feet.

On the other hand, the recreation area of Fidalgo Commons, another development the
Planning Commission visited, is 27,831 square feet. This is the size of more than four and
half (4.5) lots of 6,000 square feet, and there are only 24 lots in this subdivision. The big
difference at Fidalgo Commons is that the play area and the stormwater management area
share the same space. Sapp Place has a separate, fenced-off, stormwater facility of 2,389
square feet. Below is a table showing the size of the recreation area at some recent
subdivisions:

Development Name Lots Play area size in square feet (detention pond size)
Fidalgo Commons 24 27,381 combined
Sapp Place 7 950 (2,389)
Spring Meadows 68 7,000 not including paths (27,586)
Brickyard Meadows 38 7,000 not including paths (21,815)
Thyme Square 25 2,768 (under roads)
Park Cottages 16 4,021 combined
Klinger Estates 94 38,374 plus 63,660 open space(23,447)

Private Parks - Regulations & Design Guideline Updates
City of Sedro-Woolley

Page 2



To address the concerns that not enough recreational areas are provided, the minimum size
of a recreation area has been proposed to start at 8,000 square feet. The requirement to add
additional square footage per unit has also been modified. An additional 100 feet of
recreational space per unit will be applicable for developments over 25 units.

A new section of the Design Standards and Guidelines manual has been included in Exhibit
B. This section would apply to all residential recreation areas in subdivisions and multi-
family developments and will supersede any other references to play areas or recreation
areas in the design manual. Staff will amend any such references within the design manual
once the proposed new section for residential recreation areas (Exhibit B) is complete.

RECOMMENDATION

Staff requests that the Planning Commission review the attached exhibits, take public
testimony at the May 18, 2010 hearing, then discuss further changes. After receiving input
from the public at the May 18 meeting, staff will synthesize the comments and suggestions
into revised text that the Planning Commission and public can review at the next scheduled
Planning Commission meeting on June 15, 2010. Once the proposed new language for
residential recreation areas (Exhibit B) is complete, staff will amend the other sections of
the Design Standards and Guidelines that address recreation areas, including the Additional
Standards for Multi-Family Development. Those revisions will be presented to the
Planning Commission at that time.

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING PUBLISHED IN THE SKAGIT VALLEY HERALD: May 8, 2010

EXHIBITS:

A. Recommended amendments to Ch. 17.38 SWMC — Residential Play Areas
B. Recommended amendments to Design Standards and Guidelines manual
C. Public comments

Private Parks - Regulations & Design Guideline Updates
City of Sedro-Woolley

Page 3



Exhibit A
Chapter 17.38
RESIDENTIAL PLAY  Recreation  AREAS
Sections:

17.38.010 Required play  recreation  areas,
17.38.020 Standards.
17.38.030 Open space.

17.38.010 Required 0-ay-recreation  areas.
New developments of more than four dwelling units (including but not limited to new subdivisions,
planned developments, mobile home parks, and multifamily residential buildings) shall be
required, as a condition of approval, to provide a minimum of eight  Iciendreci-thousand square feet
of unpaved, usable open space with lawn or other soft surface for an outdoor children's
playrecreation area, plus an additional fifty-one hundred  square feet of usable open space for each
additional unit beyond the initial  five-twenty five  units, up to a maximum of ton thousand square
feet, except that this requirement does not apply to residential development which is secondary to
a commercial use in the central business district, or to developments legally restricted exclusively
to senior citizen dwellings by restrictive covenant or other device.

17.38.020 Standards.
The following factors shall bo concidcrcdstandards and guidelines in the Sedro-Woolley Design
Standards and Guidelines manual shall be followed  when designing a childron's playrecreation  

a reaz:

A. The minimum dimension shah be twenty five feet;
B. Earth berms, vegetative screening, or fencing should se
parking areas;
C. Residents should have convenient access;
D. The design should invite a variety of active and passiv

eating gentle slopes or berms, and shall provide
- • e - - e - - • - z * * • - e e

Play areas shall not be located within utility corridors.

15.11 for conformance with this and other provisions of tho city code.

17.38.030 Open space.
A. The children's playrecreation area shall not be located in areas sensitive to human
disturbances such as wetlands, riparian corridors and slopes of forty percent or more, or in
required street frontage landscaping.
B. The children's playrecreation area may be dispersed on the site; provided, that the minimum
size of each area is eignt-i six thousand square feet or larger.
C.

D. Units in a multifamily complex which have private yards exceeding four hundred square feet
shall not be considered in calculating the children's play area requirement for the complex.



Exhibit B
Proposed new section of Design Standards manual

Additional Standards for Residential Recreation areas 

SITE DESIGN

Residential Recreation Areas 

intent 

These standards are intended to provide developers clear guidance as to the  design 
requirements of residential recreation areas in subdivisions and multi-family developments. 
Residential recreation areas are private parks owned and  maintained by the homeowners within  a 
subdivision and are intended to provide recreational opportunities for users of all age. Recreation 
areas shall be of sufficient size to accommodate all of the uses required by these standards and 
the those of the municipal code. Incorporation of recreational areas with the stormwater system 
required for the development is encouraged. To assure compatibility,  the two uses must be shown
to not interfere with the function of the other use, and the Planning Director and City Engineer
must approve the combined use. 

Residential recreation areas are for active recreational use. These areas are separate from open 
spaces as required as part of a planned residential development (PRD), critical area buffering
requirements and common space requirements for Mixed Commercial development. However, the
Planning Director may allow the combination of common space and recreation areas  in Mixed 
Commercial developments if the proposal  meets the intent of both common space and residential
recreation area regulations. The common space/useable recreation areas requirements in the 
Additional Standards for Multi-Family Development shall be consistent with this section. Should 
there be any conflict between the two sections, with this section shall take precedence. 

Standards
Required: 
1. Recreation areas shall be a minimum of 8,000 square feet. The dispersal of recreation areas

on the site is allowable, but no area shall be less  than 6,000 square feet;
2. Lighting shall be provided for the play area. Street lighting  from the adjacent street may qualify

as required lighting if the Public Works Department determines  that the adjacent lighting 
provides sufficient illumination

3. The design of the play area and the materials and equipment used in play area must meet
requirements of ASTM for durability and safety. An approved soft surface is required in the fall-
zone beneath and around play equipment. Many types of  materials may be acceptable
including pea gravel. Mulch or hog fuel is not an acceptable surface; 

4. Sand boxes may not count towards required recreational equipment and are discouraged from 
being used in recreation areas; 

5. Non sight-obscuring fencing, berms and landscaping or a combination of these to define the
recreation area boundaries and to provide safety barrier, if necessary, between the recreation 
area and roads. This requirement is necessary if the recreation area adjoins a road classified
as anything besides Local Access by the Public Works Department. The Planning Department
shall determine if buffering from a local access road is necessary. For example, a recreation 
area located mid-block a Local Access road or  at the intersection of two Local Access roads
may be required to incorporate buffering;



6. Recreation areas shall not be located within utility corridors, but are encouraged to be
incorporated into stormwater management areas if plan meets design review criteria and is
approved by Planning Director and City Engineer

7. Recreation areas serving more that 25 lots are required to incorporate a drinking fountain; 
8. The minimum dimension shall be twenty-five feet. Paths providing access to a recreation area

shall be at least 20 feet in width and may not be counted towards required recreation area 
9. Trails required as part of a regional trails plan do not count towards recreation area 

requirements. Trails that are voluntarily developed and connect to the regional trail plan,  if
approved by the Planning Director, may count up to 25% of the required recreation area
requirement; 

10. Seating areas and/or picnic tables;
11. Residents shall have convenient access and the recreation  area shall be visible from a right-of-

way or other approved commonly accessible area; 
12. The design of the recreation area shall comply with the design review standards of SW MC

Chapter 15.44 and any other applicable provisions of  the city code .,
13. Recreation areas shall be landscaped. No  more than 75% of the site may be lawn 
14. At least four of the following amenities categories shall be incorporated into the recreation

area:
a. Sports court; 
b. Sports field; 
c. Covered shelter/picnic structure; 
d. Site furnishings (benches, tables, bike racks)
e. Public art; 
f. Drinking fountain .,
q. Children's Play equipment; 
h. Community garden, including raised beds;  
i. Water feature(s) 

Guidelines
Encouraged: 
1. Water features. 
2. Interpretive signage associated with trails adjacent to critical areas.
3. Trellises, arbors, hanging baskets. 
4. Community gardening plot. 



 

C

CITY- OF SEDRO-W00_,L=1-W

PLANNING COMM SSION

Commen Question ? Suggeation§?
Please let us know your opinions about the topics the Planning Commission will be reviewing this
year. The City strives to make changes that best serve the whole community. The goal of the
Planning Commission is to recommend changes to existing City rules and regulations that assure that
future development in the City meets the goals of its residents. Your input will help shape the future
of Sedro-Woolley! The Planning Commission will be working on the following topics in 2010:

o I mproving public and private park development standards in the City
o Update the Schools section of the Capital Facilities Element
o Revise Design Standards for the Mixed Commercial Zone
• Consider zoning change for properties east of Fruitdale Road
o Develop Urban Forestry program

1 • • ..• •••••'"'
A %.. , j 1 . 0 • • A

•1.. \ • • L ) 	.' A,/ Lt. - V '. 't... ,

l'\ ' 
•"M 11 \ (.1,2,-.,,,4 e._ ,_ 

...

'3 ttY)1 ri' k
A j Z-r) .i .k.i - L.)r- • 1 , fi' 4 	1 , •

(,XA 1 't\O I 1A )-{n 0..t b
(.9 r -

1

1 k,,, , i--,-/:;), Q il Li ' .v--r11473 vt:4t- r s ,-, 2_, t -,)
I ,

\iNQ i,___ r 41 1,-, r 17)r) CN1 ir\) rtr 	b r r(-- ,C1 .e d-r ,
et 9.F. . ! a 0 .:4) ' . ) • k - • , D ' ,9

91,1 	- \- f17-011 ` .7 .--S-L--0 2?)

Thank Yo for you?: ilnpud Sedro-Woolley Planning Department
325 Metcalf Street

phone: (360) 855-0771 fax: (360)855-0733
Jack R. Moore, Planning Director

John Coleman, Senior Planner



CITlY OIL SED 0-WOOLLEY

PLANNING COMMISS:ON

Comments? Questions? Suggestions?
Please let us know your opinions about the topics the Planning Commission will be reviewing this
year. The City strives to make changes that best serve the whole community. The goal of the
Planning Commission is to recommend changes to existing City rules and regulations that assure that
future development in the City meets the goals of its residents. Your input will help shape the future
of Sedro-Woolley! The Planning Commission will be working on the following topics in 2010:

o Improving public and private park development standards in the City
• Update the Schools section of the Capital Facilities Element
• Revise Design Standards for the Mixed Commercial Zone
o Consider zoning change for properties east of Frultdale Road
o Develop Urban Forestry program

,
10 14a0101-A.A....4 I;

,
..

/
- -ii _,

__LA „/ i / .1 - 2 1 AI O'_4_4 .Alt-'•4 	/*/ . Y

r..614-1

I
.., " -6( a

i ...../.." .... • ao ,...., :4, , i / ' It. ....4 . ,

cL, (Jar I

62_14 k-e,A
.,4 A 2a

tt
di Z-Ie G,--tLL," d, i

. ,

hEnk You for your hiput Sedro-Woolley Planning Department
325 Metcalf Street

phone: (360) 855-0771 fax: (360)855-0733
Jack R. Moore, Planning Director

John Coleman, Senior Planner



Page 1 of 1

John Coleman

From: Victor Vallejos [v_pvallejos©hotmail,com]

Sent: Thursday, March 04, 2010 6:45 PM

To: John Coleman

Subject: RE: Sedro-Woolley Parks

Mr. Coleman,
so sorry I missed you and the Planning Commission. Yes I was very Interested in being here
however, My Job took me to Everett today and I was unable to get away. If your looking for
someone to work for you Hire me...
I just wanted the committee to know that our playground is nice, but it just for kids at the
age of 5 years of age. How about adding a rock wall or monkey bars for the older one's as
well? the woodchips need to go away.. pea gravel or shredded rubber is better. NO sand
that just makes a big CAT BOX.. I have many Idea's I also volunteer at our Boy and Girls
club. Kids I love we need to be there for them, If not let's just build a bigger Jail..
Thanks for reading this please call.
360-854-0408
V/r
Victor G. Vallejos

Subject: Sedro-Woolley Parks
Date: Thu, 4 Mar 2010 09:52:23 -0800
From: jcoleman©ci.sedro-woolley.wa,us
To: v_pvallejos@hotmail.com

Mr. Vallejos,

We spoke last week at the play area on Park Cottage Place about ways to improve the city rules for play
areas in future developments like Park Cottages. I am sending you this email as a reminder that the
Planning Commission will be visiting Park Cottages at roughly 3:45 today. You seemed interested in
being present for the site visit and the Planning Commission will be very interested in your input.
However, please do not feel obligated to be there. If you would like to provide input, please feel free to
send me an email or a letter to 325 Metcalf Street, whichever you prefer. Thank you for your interest in
this issue,

John Coleman
Senior Planner

City of Sedro-Woolley
(360) 855-0771 ext.1025

Hotmail: Powerful Free email with security by Microsoft. Get it now. 

3/8/2010



Attachment B

Planning Commission Findings, Conclusions and Recommendation

- Final PC recommended amendments to Chapter 17.38 SWMC -



Attachment 2 to PC Findings of Fact
Proposed amendments to chapter 17.38 SWMC

Chapter 17.38
RESIDENTIAL PLAY  Recreation  AREAS
Sections:

17.38.010 Required play  recreation  areas.
17.38.020 Standards.
17.38.030 Open space.

17.38.010 Required ;play recreation areas.
New developments of more than four dwelling units (including but not limited to new subdivisions,
planned developments, mobile home parks, and multifamily residential 44 sdevelopments)
shall be required, as a condition of approval, to provide a minimum of eight  hundred  thousand 

square feet of unpaved, usable open space with lawn or other soft surface for an outdoor
children's playrecreation  area, plus an additional  fifty-one hundred  square feet of usable open
space for each additional unit beyond the initial five twenty five  units,
thousand square feet, except that this requirement does not apply to residential development
which is secondary to a commercial use in the central business district,  or to developments legally
restricted exclusively to senior citizen dwellings by restrictive covenant or other device.

17.38.020 Standards.
The standards and guidelines in the Sedro-Woolley Design Standards and Guidelines manual 
shall be followed following factors shat 	when designing a children's playrecreation
area;,

A. The minimum dimension shall be twenty five feet; 
B. Earth berms, vegetative screening, or fencing should se e

parking-ar-eas;
.1 " "*. ".• " 0" • ""

D. The design should invite a variety of active and passive recr ational activities appropriate for
children by utilizing unique natural features, cr ating gentle slopes or berms, and shall provide

e"-• _ •- e ...e

E. Play areas shall not be located within utility corridors.

15/11 for conformance with this and other provisions of the city code.

17.38.030 Open space.
A. The children's playrecreation area shall not be located in areas sensitive to human
disturbances such as wetlands, riparian corridors and slopes of  fe-Fty-ten percent or more, or in
required street frontage landscaping.  Exception: slope may be greater in limited recreation 
elements. 

B. The children's playrecreation area may be dispersed on the site; provided, that the minimum
size of each area is eig-14t-httn-dr-ectsix thousand square feet or larger.
C. Usable open space set aside pursuant to this chapter shall be applied toward the open space
required through the pt ."• ": tt :•• ""



Attachment C

Planning Commission Findings, Conclusions and Recommendation

- Final PC recommended amendments to Design Standards and Guidelines -



Attachment 3 to PC Findings of Fact
Proposed new section of Design Standards manual

Additional Standards for Subdivisions

SITE DESIGN

Residential Recreation Areas

Intent
These standards are intended to provide developers clear guidance as to the design 

requirements of residential recreation areas in subdivisions and multi-family developments. 
Residential recreation areas are private parks owned and maintained by the homeowners within a 
subdivision and are intended to provide recreational opportunities for users of all age. Recreation 
areas shall be of sufficient size to accommodate all of the uses required by these standards and 
the those of the municipal code. Incorporation of recreational areas with  the stormwater system 
required for the development is encouraged. To assure compatibility, the two uses must be shown
to not interfere with the function of the other use, and  the Planning Director and City Engineer
must approve the combined use

Residential recreation areas are separate from open spaces as required as part of a planned 
residential development (PRD), critical area buffering requirements and  common space
requirements for Mixed Commercial development. However, the  Planning Director may allow the 
combination of common space and recreation areas  in Mixed Commercial developments  if the 
proposal meets the intent of both common space and residential recreation area regulations.  The
common space/useable recreation areas requirements  in the Additional Standards for Multi-Family
Development shall be consistent with this section. Should there be any conflict between the two
sections, with this section shall take precedence.  

Standards
Required: 
1. Recreation areas shall total a minimum of 8,000 square feet. The dispersal of recreation  areas

on the site is allowable, but no single area shall be less than 6,000 square feet; 
2. Shielded lighting shall be provided for the play area. Street lighting from the adjacent street

may qualify as required lighting if the Public Works Department determines  that the adjacent
lighting provides sufficient illumination; 

3. The design of the play area and the materials and equipment used  in play area must meet
requirements of ASTM for durability and safety. An approved soft surface is required in the fall-
zone beneath and around play equipment. Many types of materials may be acceptable
including pea gravel. Mulch or hog fuel is not an acceptable surface;  

4. Sand boxes may not count towards required recreational equipment  and are discouraged from
being used in recreation areas; 

5. Non sight-obscuring fencing, berms and landscaping or a combination of  these to define the
recreation area boundaries and to provide safety barrier, if necessary, between the recreation 
area and roads. This requirement is necessary if the recreation area adjoins a road classified 
as anything besides Local Access by  the Public Works Department. The Planning Department
shall determine if buffering from a local access road is necessary.  For example, a recreation 
area located mid-block a Local Access road or at the intersection of two Local Access  roads
may be required to incorporate buffering; 



6. Recreation areas shall not be located within utility corridors, but are encouraged to be 
incorporated into stormwater management areas if plan meets design review criteria and is
approved by Planning Director and City Engineer

7. Recreation areas serving more that 25 lots are required to incorporate a drinking fountain; 
8. The minimum dimension shall be twenty-five feet. Areas including paths that provide access to 

a recreation area shall be at least 20 feet in width and may not be counted towards required 
recreation area to improve visibility and safety; 

9. Trails required as part of a regional trails plan do not count towards recreation area
requirements. Trails that are voluntarily developed and connect to the regional trail plan, if
approved by the Planning Director, may count up to 25% of the required recreation area 
requirement; 

10. Seating areas and/or picnic tables; 
11. Residents shall have convenient access and the recreation area shall be visible from a right-of-

way or other approved commonly accessible area .,
12. The design of the recreation area shall comply with the design review standards of SWMC

Chapter 15.44 and any other applicable provisions of the city code; 
13. Recreation areas shall be landscaped. No more than 75% of the site may be lawn; 
14. At least four of the following amenities shall be incorporated into the recreation area: 

a. Sports court; 
b. Sports field; 
c. Covered shelter/picnic structure; 
d. Site furnishings (tables, bike racks, other) 
e. Public art; 
f. Drinking fountain; 
g. Children's Play equipment; 
h. Community garden, including raised beds; 
i. Water feature(s)  

Guidelines  

Encouraged: 
1. Water features. 
2. Interpretive signage associated with trails adjacent to critical areas. 
3. Trellises, arbors, hanging baskets. 
4. Community gardening plot. 
5. Restrooms. 



Exhibit B —

Proposed ordinance for amendments to Chapter 17.38 SWMC and the Design
Standards and Guidelines



ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 17.38 SWMC AND THE SEDRO-
WOOLLEY DESIGN STANDARDS AND GUIDELINES REGARDING PRIVATE

PARKS DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS

WHEREAS, the City of Sedro-Woolley Planning Commission has thoroughly reviewed
the existing standards for development of private parks in new subdivisions and discussed the
topic at several Planning Commission meetings to receive public input on the issue; and

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission held an open record public hearing on May 18,
2010 to hear public comments of proposed revisions to Chapter 17.38 and the Design Standards
and Guidelines; and

WHEREAS, based on public comments and other information presented, the Planning
Commission made final recommendations for amendments to Chapter 17.38 and the Design
Standards and Guidelines on June 15, 2010; and

WHEREAS, the City Council does hereby adopt the Planning Commission findings
found in the Findings of Fact, Conclusions and Recommendations dated September 16, 2010;

NOW THEREFORE THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY
DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1.

Chapter 17.38 SWMC is amended to read as follows:

RESIDENTIAL PLAY Recreation   AREAS
Sections:

17.38.010 Required play-recreation  areas.
17.38.020 Standards.
17.38.030 Open space.

I 17.38.010 Required play-recreation  areas.
New developments of more than four dwelling units (including but not limited to new
subdivisions, planned developments, mobile home parks, and multifamily residential
buildingsdevelopments) shall be required, as a condition of approval, to provide a minimum of
eight hundred-thousand  square feet of unpaved, usable open space with lawn or other soft surface
for an outdoor elii-ldr-eiils-playrecreation area, plus an additional fifty-one hundred  square feet of
usable open space for each additional unit beyond the initial ftve-twenty five  units, up to a
maximum of ten thousand square feet, except that this requirement does not apply to residential
development which is secondary to a commercial use in the central business district, or to
developments legally-r-eatriated exclusively  to senior citizen dwellings by restrictive covenant or
other device.

Page 1 of 5



17.38.020 Standards.
The standards and guidelines in the Sedro-Woolley Design Standards and Guidelines manual
shall be followed  following factors shall be considered when designing a children's
p1ayrecreation area,

A. The minimum dimension shall be twenty five feet;
B. Earth berms, vegetative screening, or fencing should separate the  play arqa from driving and
parking areas;
C. Residents should have convenient access;

children by utilizing unique natural features, creating gentle slopes or berms, and shall provide
other amenities such as seating benches or play equipment as approved  by the director; and

F. The design of the play arqa shall comply with the design review standards of SWIVIC Chapter
15.111 for conformance with this and other provisions of the city code.

17.38.030 Open space.
A. The children's play 	 area shall not be located in areas sensitive to human
disturbances such as wetlands, riparian corridors and slopes of  foi-ty-Iguercent or more, or in
required street frontage landscaping.   Exception: slope may be greater in limited recreation 
elements. 

B. The
size of each area is eigh edSiX thousand square feet or larger. 

.• • " - . -    
required through the planned development process.

D. Units in a multifamily complex which have private yards exceeding four hundred square feet

Section 2.

The Sedro-Woolley Design Standards and Guidelines are amended as follows to include the new
section titled Additional Standards for Subdivisions:

Additional Standards for Subdivisions

SITE DESIGN

Residential Recreation Areas

Intent
These standards are intended to provide developers clear guidance as to the design 

requirements of residential recreation areas in subdivisions and multi-family developments. 
Residential recreation areas are private parks  owned and maintained by the homeowners within a
subdivision and are intended to provide recreational opportunities for users of all age. Recreation
areas shall be of sufficient size to accommodate all of the uses required by these standards and the
those of the municipal code. Incorporation of recreational areas with the stormwater system
required for the development is encouraged. To assure compatibility, the two uses must be shown

- - - ecreation area may be dispersed on the site; provided, that the minimum

Page 2 of 5



to not interfere with the function of the other use, and the Planning Director and City Engineer
must approve the combined use 

Residential recreation areas are separate from open spaces as required as part of a planned
residential development (PRD), critical area buffering requirements and common space
requirements for Mixed Commercial development. However, the Planning Director may allow
the combination of common space and recreation areas in Mixed Commercial developments if the
proposal meets the intent of both common space and residential recreation area regulations. The 
common space/useable recreation areas requirements in the Additional Standards for Multi-
Family Development shall be consistent with this section. Should there be any conflict between
the two sections, with this section shall take precedence. 

Standards
Required: 
1. Recreation areas shall total a minimum of 8,000 square feet. The dispersal of recreation areas

on the site is allowable, but no single area shall be less than 6,000 square feet;
2. Shielded lighting shall be provided for the play area. Street lighting from the adjacent street

may qualify as required lighting if the Public Works Department determines that the  adjacent
lighting provides sufficient illumination; 

3. The design of the play area and the materials and equipment used in play area must  meet
requirements of ASTM for durability and  safety. An approved soft surface is required in the 
fall-zone beneath and around play equipment. Many types of materials may be acceptable
including pea gravel. Mulch or hog fuel is not an acceptable surface: 

4. Sand boxes may not count towards required recreational equipment and are discouraged from
being used in recreation areas; 

5. Non sight-obscuring fencing, berms and landscaping or  a combination of these to define the
recreation area boundaries and to provide safety barrier, if necessary, between the recreation 
area and roads. This requirement is necessary if the recreation area adjoins a road classified
as anything besides Local Access by the Public Works Depai (Anent. The Planning Department
shall determine if buffering from a local access road is necessary. For example, a recreation 
area located mid-block a Local Access road or at the intersection of two Local Access roads
may be required to incorporate buffering; 

6. Recreation areas shall not be located within utility corridors, but are encouraged to be
incorporated into storniwater management areas if plan meets design review criteria and  is 
approved by Planning Director and City Engineer

7. Recreation areas serving more that 25 lots are required to incorporate a drinking fountain:,
8. The minimum dimension shall be twenty-five feet. Areas including paths that  provide access 

to a recreation area shall  be at least 20 feet in width and may not be counted towards required
recreation area to improve visibility and safety; 

9. Trails required as part of a regional trails plan do not count towards recreation area
requirements. Trails that are voluntarily developed and connect to  the regional trail plan, if
approved by the Planning Director, may count up to 25% of the required recreation area
requirement; 

10. Seating areas and/or picnic tables; 
11. Residents shall have convenient access and the recreation area shall be visible  from a right-

of-way or other approved commonly accessible area; 
12. The desi of the recreation area shall com •1 with the desi review standards of SWMC

Chapter 15.44 and any other applicable provisions of the city code.,
13. Recreation areas shall be landscaped. No more than 75% of the site  may be lawn:,
14. At least four of the following amenities shall be incorporated into  the recreation area:  

Page 3 of 5



a. Sports court;
b. Sports field; 
c. Covered shelter/picnic structure; 
d. Site furnishings (tables, bike racks, other) 
e. Public art;
f. Drinking fountain;
g. Children's Play equipment; 
h. Community garden, including raised beds;  
i. Water feature(s)

Guidelines
Encouraged: 
1. Water features. 
2. Interpretive signage associated with trails adjacent to critical areas.  
3. Trellises, arbors, hanging baskets. 
4. Community gardening plot.  
5. Restrooms.  

Section 3. EFFECTIVE DATE. This ordinance shall take effect five (5) days after the approval
by the City Council and publication as provided by law.

Section 4. SEVERABILITY. If any provision of this ordinance or its application to any person
or circumstance is held invalid, the remainder of the ordinance or the application of the provision
to other persons or circumstances is not affected.

PASSED by majority vote of the members of the Sedro-Woolley City Council
this day of 2010, and signed in authentication of its
passage this day of 2010.

Mike Anderson, Mayor

Attest:

Patsy Nelson, City Clerk/Treasurer

Approved as to form:

Page 4 of 5



Eron Berg, City Attorney

Published

Page 5 of 5



ITTEE 
T/s

AND

REP RTS

WFICERS



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA
REGULAR MEETING

SEP 2 2 2010
7:00 P.M. COUNCIL CHAMBERS
AGENDA NO. 

CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY
Sedro-Woolley Municipal Building

325 Metcalf Street
Sedro-Woolley, WA 98284

Phone (360) 855-9922
Fax (360) 855-9923

Eron M. Berg
City Supervisor/City Attorney

MEMO TO: City Council
FROM: Eron Berg
RE: Fire Station 2 Update
DATE: September 23, 2010

PROJECT STATUS: Electrical, plumbing and mechanical rough in is nearly complete
and scheduled for inspections hear this meeting. Exterior siding is going up, roofing is
scheduled for next week. The bricklayer is on site as well. Site work is progressing well with
the drainage facilities nearly complete. The project remains on or ahead of schedule and is
progressing well.

ISSUES: None that require Council action at this time.

PENDING ISSUES:

1. Design team oversights — no new update available at this time.

CHANGE ORDER PROPOSALS:

No. Description Amount Approval

1 Over excavation due to site conditions withdrawn n/a

2 Add waterline components missing from plans $26,207.00 Council 7-14

3 Bore utilities under SR 9 (design team error) $40,336.00 Council 7-14

4 Missed switches from electrical plan $ 526.00 EB 9-2

5 Added cost to pour plinth missing from plans withdrawn n/a

6 Central exhaust system design conflicts $ 981.00 EB 9-16

7 Keypad door openers (design team missed) $ 2,491.00 EB 9-2



8 Revise furnace F-2 and F-3 withdrawn n/a

9 Add 10' steel casing for waterline pending n/a

CONTRACT CHANGE ORDERS:

No. Description Amount Approval

1 CP-02r.3 & CP-03r.1 $66,543.00 Council 7-28

The original contract sum is: $1,348,300.00

CO#1 is: $ 66,543.00

The new contract total is: $1,414,843.00

REQUEST FOR ACTION: None tonight.


